Public Document Pack

AGENDA FOR
PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE co u@w

Contact: Michael Cunliffe

Direct Line: 0161 253 5399

E-mail: m.cunliffe@bury.gov.uk

Website: www.bury.gov.uk

To: All Members of Planning Control Committee

Councillors : G McGill (Chair), S Arif, C Boles, D Duncalfe,
D Green, J Harris, M Hayes, D Quinn, S Thorpe, D Vernon
and M Walsh

Dear Member/Colleague

Planning Control Committee

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Planning Control Committee
which will be held as follows:-

Date: Tuesday, 8 November 2022

Place: Council Chamber, Bury Town Hall

Time: 7.00 pm

Briefing If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require

o briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the
Facilities: appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the related
report should be contacted.

Notes: https://councilstream.com/burycouncil




AGENDA

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members of the Planning Control Committee are asked to consider whether
they have an interest in any of the matters on the Agenda and, if so, to
formally declare that interest.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON THE 11TH OCTOBER 2022 (Pages
3-4)

Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday the 11" October 2022 are attached.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS (Pages 5 - 96)

Reports attached.

DELEGATED DECISIONS (Pages 97 - 110)

A report from the Head of Development Management on all delegated
planning decisions since the last meeting of the Planning Control Committee
is attached.

PLANNING APPEALS (Pages 111 - 128)

A report from the Head of Development Management on all Planning appeal
decisions since the last meeting of the Planning Control Committee is
attached.

URGENT BUSINESS

Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair
agrees may be considered as a matter of urgency.



Agenda Item 3

Minutes of: PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 11 October 2022

Present: Councillor G McGill (in the Chair)
Councillors C Boles, D Duncalfe, D Green, J Harris, M Hayes,
D Quinn, S Thorpe and M Walsh

Also in attendance: Councillor M Smith

Public Attendance: 1 member of the public was present at the meeting.

Apologies for Absence: Councillor D Vernon

PCC1

PCC.2

PCC.3

PCC.4

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were submitted by Council D Vernon.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillors D Duncalfe and M Walsh declared an interest in planning application
68092, Land at Higher Dean Street, Radcliffe, M26 3RU as they were both members
and co-ordinators of Cams Lane neighbourhood watch group which had submitted
objections to the application.

Councillors Duncalfe and Walsh left the meeting during deliberation of the application.
MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON THE 30™ AUGUST 2022

Delegated decision:

That the Minutes of the meeting held on the 30t August 2022 be approved as a
correct record and signed by the Chair.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS

A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted in relation to
applications for planning permission.

There was supplementary information to add in respect of application number 68069.

The Committee heard representations from an applicant and Ward Councillor in
respect of applications submitted. This was limited to three minutes for the speaker.

Delegated decisions:
1. That the Committee Be Minded to Approve the following application in

accordance with the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the
report and subject to the conditions included:-

Pagel3



Planning Control Committee, 11 October 2022

Land off Kirkman Street, Bury
Proposed new residential development for 9 no. dwellings with associated
infrastructure

2. That the Committee Be Minded to Approve the following application in

accordance with the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the
report and any supplementary information submitted and subject to the
conditions included:-

Bevis Green Works, Mill Road, Walmersley, Bury, BL9 6RE

Full application to substitute the approved layout and house types on the southern
parcel of application ref: 63533, to provide 98 no. dwellings

3.  That the Committee Approve with Conditions the following application in
accordance with the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the
report and subject to the conditions included: -

Land at Higher Dean Street, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3RU
Outline application for 2 no. dwellings with all matters apart from access reserved

PCC.5 DELEGATED DECISIONS
A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted listing all recent
planning application decisions made by Officers using delegated powers since the last
meeting of the Planning Control Committee.
Delegated decision:
That the report and appendices be noted.

PCC.6 PLANNING APPEALS
A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted listing all recent
planning and enforcement appeal decisions since the last meeting of the Planning
Control Committee.
Delegated decision:
That the report and appendices be noted.

PCC.7 URGENT BUSINESS

No urgent business was reported.

COUNCILLOR G MCGILL
Chair

(Note: The meeting started at 7.00pm and ended at 7.55pm)

Page 4



Agenda Item 4

Title Planning Applications

To: Planning Control Committee
On: 08 November 2022
By: Development Manager

Status: For Publication

Executive Summary

The attached reports present members with a description of various planning applications, the
results of consultations, relevant policies, site history and issues involved.

My recommendations in each case are given in the attached reports.

This report has the following implications

Township Forum/ Ward: l|dentified in each case.
Policy: Identified in each case.
Resources: Not generally applicable.

Equality Act 2010: All planning applications are considered in light of the Equality Act 2010 and
associated Public Sector Equality Duty, where the Council is required to have due regard for:
The elimination of discrimination, harassment and victimisation;

The advancement of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and person who do not share it;

The fostering of good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
and person who do not share it; which applies to people from the protected equality groups.

Human Rights: All planning applications are considered against the provisions of the Human
Rights Act 1998.

Under Article 6 the applicants (and those third parties who have made representations) have the
right to a fair hearing and to this end full consideration will be given to their comments.

Article 8 and Protocol 1 of the First Article confer a right to respect private and family life and a
right to the protection of property, ie peaceful enjoyment of one's possessions which could
include a person's home, and other land and business assets.

In taking account of the Council policy as set out in the Bury Unitary Development Plan 1997 and
all material planning considerations, | have concluded on balance that the rights conferred upon
the applicant/ objectors/ residents/ other interested party by Article 8 and Article 1 of the First
Protocol may be interfered with, since such interference is in accordance with the law and is
justified in the public interest. Any restriction of these rights posed by refusal/ approval of the
application is legitimate since it is proportionate to the wider benefits of such a decision, is based

Page 5



upon the merits of the proposal, and falls within the margin of discretion afforded to the Council
under the Town & Country Planning Acts.

The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 imposes (without prejudice to any other obligation imposed on
it) a duty upon the Council to exercise its functions and have due regard to the likely effect of the
exercise of its functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and
disorder in its area. In so doing and on making planning decisions under the Town and Country
Planning Acts, the Planning Control Committee shall have due regard to the provisions of the
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and its implications in the exercise of its functions.

Development Manager

Background Documents

The planning application forms and plans submitted therewith.
Certificates relating to the ownership.

Letters and Documents from objectors or other interested parties.
Responses from Consultees.

POON =

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION ON THE CONTENTS OF EACH REPORT PLEASE CONTACT
INDIVIDUAL CASE OFFICERS IDENTIFIED IN EACH CASE.

Page 6



01

02

03

04

05

Township Forum - Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Pilkington App No. 68542

Park
Location: 79 Bury New Road, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7EG
Proposal: Change of use from 6 bed HMO (Class C4) to 8 bed HMO (Sui Generis)
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site Visit: N
Township Forum - Ward: Radcliffe - North and Ainsworth App No. 68595
Location: Wesley Methodist Primary School, Forth Road, Radcliffe, Manchester,
M26 4PX
Proposal: Erection of 2.4m high fencing and 2no. Access gates
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site Visit: N
Township Forum - Ward: Ramsbottom and Tottington - App No. 68608
Ramsbottom
Location: Land adjacent to 391 Whalley Road, Shuttleworth, Ramsbottom, Bury,
BLO OER
Proposal: Demolition of existing garages and Erection of 2 no. semi-detached

dwellings with associated parking; Additional off street parking for
residents of Whalley Road

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site Visit: N
Township Forum - Ward: North Manor App No. 68633
Location: Land adjacent to 51 Humber Drive, Bury, BL9 6SJ

Proposal: Erection of 2 no. semi detached dwellings.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site Visit: N
Township Forum - Ward: Radcliffe - North and Ainsworth App No. 68661
Location: Ainsworth Nursing Home, Knowsley Road, Ainsworth, Bolton, BL2 5PT
Proposal: Erection of a dwelling and associated access, parking and landscaping,

provision of landscape buffer, and change of use and refurbishment of
Gate House within the curtilage of the former Ainsworth Nursing Home.
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions Site Visit: N

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Pilkington Park ltem

Applicant: Harrington House Estates Limited

Location: 79 Bury New Road, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7EG

Proposal: Change of use from 6 bed HMO (Class C4) to 8 bed HMO (Sui Generis)
Application Ref: 68542/Full Target Date: 16/09/2022
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Description

The application relates to a large red brick/slate end terraced property on the west side of
Bury New Road, to the south of the Higher lane junction. The formerly a single house, it has
undergone refurbishment and conversion to a 6 person House in Multiple Occupation
(HMO) as permitted development. The site is the southernmost property within the terraced
block of eight residential properties. It is noted that the property at the northern end of the
block is also a HMO. To the west, across Bury New Road is the United Reformed Church
and the block of flats known as Mayfair Gardens.

The main pedestrian entrance is from Bury New Road. Vehicular access to the unmade
parking area at the side of the property is from the unmade/unadopted access road (Robin
Lane) that runs around the back and side of the row of terraced properties (79-93 Bury New
Road) and onto Bury New Road on the north side of the row. Robin Lane also allows
access to the children's day nursery, situated to the rear of the site. The carriageway width
along Robin Lane varies from around 5.5m, to the rear of the block and 8.5m to the side of
No0.93 at the northern end of the block. The width of the hardstanding immediately to the
south of the property is 11.6m wide.

Bury New Road, to the front of the site, is a very busy stretch of road with parking
restrictions and there are traffic lights directly in front of the property.

The proposed development involves:

¢ Change of use of the existing 6 person HMO in to an 8 person HMO. The two additional
bedrooms and kitchen/diner would be on the second floor, in the existing rooms within
roofspace. The proposal also involves the creation of 11 parking spaces to the side of
the property. It is proposed that 5 of these spaces would be for the residents of the
HMO with the others available for neighbouring residents.

The supporting statement, submitted with the application, states that the HMO is licensed
for 6 people and is currently occupied. It has confirmed that three of the residents have cars
which is a 50% car ownership level. In addition to the supporting statement, a Highways
Technical Note has been submitted, specifically addressing the issues relating to access
and parking.

Relevant Planning History

64719 - Change of use from existing 6 bed HMO (Class C4) to 8 bed (8 person) house in
multiple occupation (HMO) (Sui Generis) - 10/03/2020

61596 - Conversion and extensions to existing dwelling house to form 8 bed House in
Multiple Occupation (HMO) - Refused 28/07/2017

64719 - Change of use from existing 6 bed HMO (Class C4) to 8 bed (8 person) house in
multiple occupation (HMO) (Sui Generis) - Refused 15/11/2019

Appeal on 64719 dismissed by Planning Inspector 10/03/20202

Publicity
P3854% No 1

01



Thirty four neighbours were notified by letter dated 25/07/2022.

Thirteen objections received from 11 properties and summarised below:

e The previous application was refused and the subsequent appeal dismissed. The
concerns of the Planning Inspector are still relevant.

e The proposal will intensify the use of the property and lead to increased traffic
generation and pressures on parking around the site.

e There is no control over how many cars a future tenant may have. Two additional units
may mean 4 extra cars.

e There would be increase service/delivery vehicles.
The unmade access road from Bury new Road is not suitable to carry more vehicles.
With cars parked on Robin Lane, vehicles may not be able to turn and would have to
reverse onto Bury New Road.

e The junction onto Bury New Road is very dangerous and more vehicles would be
detrimental to highway safety.

¢ Vehicles along this park of Bury new Road travel at high speed, making turning very
hazardous.

Those making representations have been notified of the Planning Control Committee
meeting.

Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations
Traffic Section - No objection.
Environmental Health - No objection.
Waste Management - No objection
Greater Manchester Police - No objection.

Pre-start Conditions - Applicant/Agent has agreed with pre-start conditions.

Unitary Development Plan and Policies

H1/2 Further Housing Development

H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development
H2/4 Conversions

EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design

EN7 Pollution Control

HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development

HT5/1 Access For Those with Special Needs

HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict

SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

SPD13 Conversion of Buildings to Houses in Multiple Occupation

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Principle - The conversion of a house to a House in Multiple Occupation is acceptable in
principle, highlighted by the fact that the property was previously converted to a 6-person
HMO under 'permitted development' earlier this year.

This application seeks permission to allow accommodation for 2 further residents on the
second floor and as such the main issue is what impact the impact of the additional

R8ggeo 2



accommodation would have in planning terms.

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out the governments objective of
significantly boosting the supply of homes in all kinds of size and tenures. With regard to
HMOs, the conversion of large houses into flats or bedsits can make an important
contribution to the local housing stock and can utilise vacant or underused space more
efficiently.

Policy H1/2 states that the Council will have regard to various factors when assessing a
proposal for residential development, including whether the proposal is within the urban
area, the availability of infrastructure and the suitability of the site, with regard to amenity,
the nature of the local environment and the surrounding land uses.

The site is within an existing HMO, located within the urban area and adjacent to residential

uses. The proposed development would not conflict with the surrounding land uses and
would be located in a relatively sustainable location with access to public transport and

services. Therefore, the proposed development would be acceptable in principle and would
be in accordance with Policy H1/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and the NPPF.

However, it is recognised that the conversion of buildings to HMOs can, in some cases,

raise issues such as parking, residential amenity and impact on character and appearance
of an area.

Appeal Decision relating to 64719 (APP/T4210/W/19/3242673) - The previous appeal
decision, dated 10th March 2020 is summarised below:

The main issue is the effect of the proposal on highway safety in Bury New Road with
particular reference to vehicular parking.

Although Bury New Road is relatively straight, visibility is restricted to the south. Exiting
from the access lane in a forward gear appears safe but any drivers reversing out of
the lane would have poor visibility southwards and limited warning of approaching
vehicles. Such manoeuvres would lead to unacceptable highway safety risks.

No parking or turning layout for the lane was provided. From observations it did appear
possible to park, turn and manoeuvre within the wider areas, which would allow
vehicles to exit safely from the lane in a forward gear.

Whilst there were still spaces available at the time of the site visit, third-party
representations raised concerns regarding the level of parking, particularly in the
evenings.

The Council do not have any specific parking standards for HMO'’s. At present the
property is occupied by 6 individuals and the appellant advises that 3 of the tenants
have cars and in the area car ownership for HMO tenants is expected to be around
33%. It is therefore put to me that the proposal for 2 additional individuals would likely
result in an additional car at the appeal site.

Car ownership cannot normally be controlled through planning and in a scenario where
all residents would have a car, it would seem unlikely, based on observations and the
evidence that all vehicles could be parked along the lane in combination with cars
associated with the other properties.

With increased car ownership there is the potential for inappropriate parking that would
impede the turning and manoeuvring of vehicles in the lane and could result in vehicles
reversing out into the highway due to a lack of available space. Any increase in
occupancy levels has the potential to incrementally breach the capacity for parking and
turning within the lane. In the absence of substantive evidence to the contrary, this
would not be conducive to securing good levels of highway safety.

The proposed 8-bedroom HMO has the potential to generate a greater demand for car
parking than both a family dwelling and the existing 6-bedroom HMO.

The location of the site and its proximity to shops, facilities and public transport links,
means there is potential for occupiers to not need their own cars and some residents
may cycle. However, the site equally has good road links for potential occupiers that
own a car.

In conclusion, the lane appears to have a limited amount of parking and turning space.

Pa8ggtING 3



Based on the evidence available, an increase in parking demand from occupiers and
visitors could lead to circumstances where vehicles reverse onto Bury New Road to the
detriment of highway safety in the road.

e The proposal would be contrary to the requirements of policy HT2/4 and H2/4 of the
Bury Unitary Development Plan (adopted 1997) and the Conversion of Buildings to
Houses in Multiple Occupation Supplementary Planning Document (adopted 2007).
These require, amongst other things, that applications make adequate provision for
their car parking and servicing requirements. The proposal would also be contrary to
paragraph 109 of the National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) which
seeks to ensure that development does not have an unacceptable impact on road
safety.

e Itis recognised that the appellant is seeking to make an effective use of an existing
property, an objective which is encouraged by the Framework. The site is sustain ably
located with good access to services and facilities. The proposal would increase the
diversity of housing supply, meeting a need. The appellant has invested in renovating
the property, improving its appearance in the street scene. These are all positive
factors in favour of the scheme. However, they do not outweigh the harm identified.

Design and layout/visual amenity - Policy H2/4 states that applications for the conversion
of a building into a house of multiple occupation will be considered with regard to the
following:

o the effect on the amenity of neighbouring properties through noise, visual intrusion, the
position of entrances, impact of parking areas, extensions and fire escapes;

the general character of the area and the existing concentration of flats;

the amenity of occupants;

the effect on the streetscene of any changes to the external appearance of the building;
car parking and servicing requirements.

Given that the proposal involves only the addition of two bedsits within the existing building
without any changes in design or external appearance of the building, there are no
significant visual amenity issues arising. Indeed the refurbishment that has been
undertaken at the property has significantly improved its appearance within the streetscape
and as such would be in accordance with Policies EN1/2 and H2/4 of the Bury Unitary
Development Plan.

Impact upon Residential Amenity - As existing windows, facing the road to the front and
yard to the rear, would be utilised, there would be no significant overlooking beyond the
existing situation.

With regard to noise outbreak, appropriate sound insulation to the party wall, required by
building regulations, is in place. The proposed development would not have an adverse
impact upon the residential amenity of the neighbouring properties and would be in
accordance with UDP Policy.

Highways Technical Note - The application is accompanied by a 'Highways Technical

Note' by Axis. This document sets out the justification for the proposal in terms of access

and parking. The document is available to be read in full on the Councils website but the

main points of the document are summarised:

¢ PIA data has been analysed using Crashmap which indicates that there is no evidence
of an existing highway safety issue within the general vicinity of the site.

e The site benefits from a high level of accessibility by the main non-car modes of
transport, being within walking distance of a number of amenities, within cycling
distance of various settlements via high quality routes and having good access to bus
and tram services.

e In accordance with the parking arrangements associated with the existing site, it is

proposed that car parking associated with the two additional HMO bedrooms will be
accommodated along Robin Lane, which can be accessed via Bury New Road.

o Areview of 2011 Census data on local car ownership levels, and the level of car
occupancy at the existing site and of other similar sites contained within the TRICS

RBgge!Ro 4



Database indicates that the proposed development is anticipated to generate an
additional car parking demand of 2 spaces in the worst case scenario.

e Based on the results of a parking beat survey that was undertaken along Robin Lane,
it has been demonstrated that there is a minimum spare capacity for 9 cars to park
along Robin Lane which is more than sufficient to accommodate the anticipated
additional parking demand of the proposed development, in addition to occasional
spikes in activity that might occur.

e Furthermore, it has also been demonstrated that this level of parking can be
accommodated along Robin Lane whilst also allowing a large car to safely and
satisfactorily access, manoeuvre and egress Robin Lane in a forward gear.

e The proposed development is forecast to result in an additional 3 two-way trips per day,
on average, with no additional trips forecast to take place during the weekday AM and
PM peak hours.

e Paragraph 111 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that:

“Development should only be prevented or refused on highways grounds if there would
be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on
the road network would be severe”.

e Based on the evidence presented in this TN, no unacceptable impact would be created
by the development and the application is therefore commended for approval.

Highway and Parking - The previous planning application for the change of use to an 8
person HMO was refused in November 2019 on the following grounds:

The lack of dedicated off-road parking provision is likely to lead to vehicles parking and
carrying out manoeuvres on the highway to the serious detriment of the free flow of traffic
and road safety. The proposal is therefore unacceptable and would be contrary to the
NPPF and UDP Policies HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development and H2/4 Conversions
and supplementary guidance document SPD13 Conversion of Buildings to Houses in
Multiple Occupation.

Since the previous dismissal of the appeal in 2020, the applicant has acquired an additional
land strip of land within the existing informal parking area running parallel to the southern
boundary of the property and within the red edged site. Within this strip of land, it is
proposed to mark out 11 parking spaces at ninety degrees to the gable/side wall. These
spaces would be available for use by the residents of the HMO and any surplus spaces, by
local residents.

There are no specific car parking standards for HMO's in SPD11 Parking Standards in
Bury, but SPD 13 The Conversion of Buildings to Houses in Multiple Occupation gives
some general advice. It states that parking and road safety issues will be important
considerations when assessing a planning application and any proposal that is considered
to have a detrimental impact on highway safety or harm to amenity will not be permitted.
Car parking provision should meet the requirements of the likely occupants and, where
possible, should be provided off-street.

In terms of car ownership the supporting statement, submitted with the current application
indicates that, of the 6 current residents, 3 have cars. On this basis, it is possible that there
could be a further car generated by the additional two persons. Whilst we would not be
able to reasonably control car ownership, it would be reasonable to suggest that, in
accordance with general guidance, there would be a need for one additional space.
However, even if car ownership was greater, the 11 spaces indicated within the site, would
be considered more than adequate to accommodate additional vehicles.

The revised site plan indicates that along with the parking area to the side of the property,
there would be room for vehicles to turn at the end of Robin Lane so they could exit onto
Bury New Road in forward gear.

Notwithstanding the issues specifically relating to parking, the site is considered to be very
sustainable with excellent public transport links. Bury New Road and nearby Bury Old Road
are main roads through the Borough with bus routes and there is a metrolink station at

P3854t3No 5



Besses O' th' Barn, 300m away to the east. There is also a cycle store is located in the rear
yard.

It is considered that the revised proposals and the points made in the Highways Technical
Note, submitted with the application, go a significant way to assuage the concerns with
regard to highway safety raised by the Council and the Planning Inspector. The additional
parking area that would be formally demarcated at the side of the property is sufficient to
accommodate parking for residents of the HMO and neighbours and it has been
demonstrated that there would be appropriate turning on Robin Lane to allow vehicles to
exist onto Bury New Road in forward gear.

The Council's Traffic Team have no objection to the proposal. Given its sustainable
location, the proposal is acceptable and would comply to the NPPF and UDP Policies
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development and H2/4 Conversions and associated SPD11
Parking Standards in Bury and SPD13 Conversion of Buildings to Houses in Multiple
Occupation.

Objections.

The issues raised by objectors have been addressed in the main report. Given the current
car ownership levels within the HMO, the availability of car parking and the reasonable
expectation of there being a turning area available on Robin Lane, it is considered that
vehicles would be able to exit safely from Robin Lane onto Bury New Road in forward gear.
the traffic generated by the two additional residents would be so great as to cause undue
parking problems and be detrimental to highway safety. It is considered that the noise and
disturbance issues raised by the neighbour have been addressed by work carried out to
the party walls

Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015

The proposal complies with the development plan and would improve the economic, social
and environmental conditions of the area. It therefore comprises sustainable development
and the Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively to issue the decision
without delay. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in
Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Conditions/ Reasons

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the
date of this permission.
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

2. This decision relates to drawings numbered Revised Site Plan P01, 079/02, 03, 04
and 05 and Site Plan with Swept Path analysis, and the development shall not be
carried out except in accordance with the drawings hereby approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

3. The car parking indicated on the approved plans shall be demarcated and made
permanently available for use prior to the additional residential units hereby
approved being brought into use.

Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of
road safety pursuant to policy HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development of the
Bury Unitary Development Plan.

For further information on the application please contact Tom Beirne on 0161 253 5361

R8ggeRo 6



Viewpoints

Mayfair
Gardens

1to 10

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN

N
APP. NO 68542 / D
-+ [Bur
ADDRESS: 79 Bury New Road, Whitefield [

S COUNCIL

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 15




Page 16



Photo 4

Page 17



68542

Photo 5

Photo 6

Page 18



HM Land Registry Titie number GM393369

« Ordnance Survey map reference SD8005SE
Official copy of Scale 1:1250  F
fitle plan Administrative area Greater Manchester :
Bury

© Crown copyright and qatabas|e rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100026316. You are not pe
! L - -

rmitted to copy, sub-license, distribute or sell any of this data to third parties In any form.
2 A IR
1

Page 19

This official copy is incomplete without the preceding notes page.



Robin Lane

12no. parking bays

© bins wheeled to Bury
[ e Gy A <’ """""""""" ‘New Road on designated
i collection days
H
H

| \
|| parking accessed from

Amenity Space @
-

i
i
—_—
i
1
1 Patio
|
8no.cyde |
spaces i
—_
| |
i
i
—_—
i
i

= |

GROUND FLOOR

FIRST FLOOR

Kitchen

/Dining

SECOND FLOOR

NOT!

SOON AS POSSIBLE

E
ALL DIMENSIONS ARE TO BE CHECKED
ON SITE PRIOR TO THE START OF WORKS.
IF ANY DISCREPANCIES ARE
THEN THIS OFFICE IS TO BE NOTIFIED AS

TO BE FOUND

e

“ o
9

ROOF PLAN

im 0 1

i e Project

Proposed Extension & Change of Use
Whitefield
45 7EG

Title Client

Proposed Plan N Mackey

Scale soant Drawing

Dal. Number 079-04

SEPT 19
2 3m




77

Location Plan Site Plan

<.

O

ALL DIMENSIONS ARE TO BE CHECKED
PRIOR TO THE START OF WORKS.

IF ANY DISCREPANCIES ARE TO BE FOUND
THEN THIS OFFICE IS TO BE NOTIFIED AS

SOON AS POSSIBLE

o
>
Revision Date Description
Project
79 Bury New Road
Whitefield
M45 7EG
Title Client
Location/ Site Plan N Mackey
Scale .
1:1250@A3 Drawing
Number 079-01
Dat

eSEPT 19




2z abed

Kitchen/Dining

SECOND FLOOR

FIRST FLOOR

GROUND FLOOR

NOTE

ALL DIMENSIONS ARE TO BE CHECKED

ON SITE PRIOR TO THE START OF WORKS.
IF ANY DISCREPANCIES ARE TO BE FOUND
THEN THIS OFFICE IS TO BE NOTIFIED AS
SOON AS POSSIBLE

Project
79 Bury New Rosd
ifiokd

wh
M45 7EG

Title
Existing Plans

Date,
'SEPT 19




€z abed

|

New velux rooflight- tbc with project manager

- n
| | - ~ ~ _ | ] ~ ~ - o
SIDE ELEVATION
1
s ___ | HEeHHEPAHHAHHAI] . R B ,,,,@' ,j srL o
[ | —
[ \ :

NOTE 79 ury New Road
ALL DIMENSIONS ARE TO BE CHECKED Whiefiold
ON'SITE PRIOR TO THE START OF WORKS. s 766
IF ANY DISCREPANCIES ARE TO BE FOUND T ;
THEN THIS OFFICE IS TO BE NOTIFIED AS e sone et racke
SOON AS POSSIBLE
Scale
1.50@A1
Da'eSEPYIS




yZ abed

__________________________

e I H BEHEHEHEEFEHHBEEHHF]

GFL

FRONT ELEVATION

SIDE ELEVATION

SFL

REAR ELEVATION

il

NOTE

ALL DIMENSIONS ARE TO BE CHECKED

ON SITE PRIOR TO THE START OF WORKS.
IF ANY DISCREPANCIES ARE TO BE FOUND
THEN THIS OFFICE IS TO BE NOTIFIED AS
SOON AS POSSIBLE

Project
79 Bury New Road
Whitefield
a5 7EG
itle ient
EXISTING ELEVS N Mackey
Scale X
150@A1 Drawing
Number 079-03
Date

! eSEPl 19




s drawing is the copyright of AXIS P.E.D Limited and may not be
in any way -or used for any offer,
=

Ex Rl
5983

\TRO2 - Swept Path Analysis, Skip Lory.dwg

Follow any figured dimensions - do not scale for construction
purposes. IF IN DOUBT ASK.

Q13151-320013186-01 79 Bury New Road.

® Revision History o Date

SR

Ml
Bl
1

il
[
il

AN

N

AN

NS =

tactle

5 1110

B

DR

“\,‘

Q

N
e\\i\\\

L7777

BURY NEW ROAD

BURY NEW ROAD

SWEPT PATH ANALYSIS - 7.5T VAN

o
SWEPT PATH ANALYSIS - SKIP LORRY
My
N
ol

L 6.265 J
{ W L 7.21 J
| ]
= \
m\ Aj) — :l
\ o A
1 N
736 3.04 ‘ 0.82° 425 ‘
Small Skip L 7.5t Panel Van
Overall Length 6.265m Overall Length 7.210m
Overall Wid?h 2.390m Overall Wid _ 2.192m -
Overall Body Height 3.650m Overall Body Height 2.544m B —
Min Body Ground Clearance 0.396m Min Body Ground Clearance 0.316m R R
Max Track Width 2.435m Track Width 1.865m
Lock to lock time 6.00s Lock to lock time _ 4.00s
6.340m Kerb to Kerb Turning Radius 7.400m A .
3186-01-ATRO2 |***

Kerb to Kerb Turning Radius
PROFILE OF VEHICLE USED IN SWEPT PATH ANALYSIS - 7.5T VAN @

PROFILE OF VEHICLE USED IN SWEPT PATH ANALYSIS - SKIP LORRY
Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of HUSO. © Crown copyright & database right 2022. All rights reserved. Ordnance Survey Licence number AL 0100031673.




telegraph

[ pole

N

cycle
[Cam=)] i
- 1| [pin
tore
gated
access s
-
surplus
parking
area |
1 i
lam il
Pos! Lﬂ =),
i tactile
3 - RS
- - istin
existing existin ox13
I— metal traffic %gnal traffic S|an_?I
fencing box an: existing
signage services
—rroposed_ low
evel barrier
fencing

BURY NEW ROAD

ROBIN LANE

Notes:

Do not scale from this drawing.
All dimensions are in millimetres unless otherwise
noted.

All dimensions to be checked on site before
proceeding with work.

All omissions and discrepancies to be reported in
writing to Project 3 Architects Ltd.

Areas indicated on this drawing are approximate and
indicitive only.

© Project 3 Archit Limif

ited F in
& Wales Number 08021795.

KEY
site boundary
P01 12/10/22  Planning ED
Rev: Date: Description: By:
5m 0 &G 10m

c

PROJ ECT3

architects

4 back grafton street
altrincham

cheshire

WA14 1DY

0161 233 0575
mail@project3architects.com
www.project3architects.com

Project:
Proposed Extension & Change of Use
Whitfield, M4 7TEG

Title:
Proposed Site Plan

Status: Scale @ ISO A3:
PLANNING 1:250
Drawing Number: Revision:

0742-P3A-XX-XX-DR-A-00101 P01




Ward: Radcliffe - North and Ainsworth ltem 02

Applicant: Wesley Methodist Primary School

Location: Wesley Methodist Primary School, Forth Road, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 4PX
Proposal: Erection of 2.4m high fencing and 2no. Access gates

Application Ref: 68595/Full Target Date: 03/10/2022
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Description

The application relates to Wesley Methodist Primary School located on the east side of
Forth Road and to the south of Salisbury Road. The area is residential in character with the
site surrounded by housing. There is an existing green palisade around the entrance on
Forth St along the northern boundary with Salisbury Road with a short section running
along the side of No.15 Salisbury Road. There are lower metal railings, about 1.5m high,
around the school playing field. It is noted that there are a couple of points were there are
no railings, leaving the school with no boundary with adjacent rear gardens.

The application proposes to replace long sections of existing fence around the school
grounds. The new fence and gates would be powder coated green paladin weld mesh
fence 2.4m high. The longest section (180m) would run adjacent to the existing fence along
the western boundary, to the rear of properties along Eastfields. The new fence would be
set in from the existing fence by 1.8m. A gate in the fence would allow the planting along
the boundary and the narrow strip of grass to be maintained in a tidy state.

A section of new paladin fencing would run adjacent (set in 300mm) to the existing iron
railings along the southern boundary, to the rear of properties along Turks Road. It is noted
that a small section of this boundary does not have railings and is open to the adjoining rear
gardens.

Relevant Planning History

58882 - Creation of all weather synthetic sports pitch (resubmission) - Approved 02/09/2015
60229 - Single storey extension within courtyard to form PE store and alterations to existing
storeroom to form classroom - Approve with Conditions 26/07/2016

Publicity

Immediate neighbours notified by letter dated 11/08/2022. Representations have been

received and concerns are summarised below:

¢ Along the boundary with 15 Salisbury Road, there should be a 1.8 metre gap between
the existing fence and the new one as per Eastfields.

e Currently the perimeter of the school is full of overgrown weeds, grass & trees. A
complete shambles. The area between the fences needs to be better maintained.

e The school is taking an easy way out of the situation. The existing fence is in a
dangerous condition and really needs replacing.
Need to upgrade your security / alarm.
Plans aren't clear.

e No problem with the school replacing the existing old and rusting railings but object to a
2.4 metre fence being installed because it is simply too high and unsightly.

Respondents have been informed of the Planning Control committee meeting.

Pa8gs/No 7



Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations
Traffic Section - No objections.

Pre-start Conditions - N/A

Unitary Development Plan and Policies

SPD3 DC Policy Guidance Note 3: Planning Out Crime
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design

EN1/5 Crime Prevention

CF2 Education Land and Buildings

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Need - The school has suffered break-ins and security issues and it is considered that the
existing iron railings around the playing field are not adequate to maintain site security. The
proposed new paladin fencing would improve security around the site and would comply
with UDP Policy CF2 Education Land and Buildings, EN5/1 Crime Prevention and guidance
in Supplementary Planning Document No.3 Planning Out Crime in New Development.

Visual Amenity - The proposed paladin fence is one which is commonplace around
schools now and, powder coated green, would not appear out of keeping with the school's
setting. It would be 'permitted development' for the school to erect a 2m fence around the
boundary and given its design and position to the rear of surrounding gardens, the
additional 400mm would not be considered so excessive to warrant refusal.

Residential Amenity - For the most part, the new fence would be situated at the rear of
surrounding gardens and would not be so prominent as to cause serious detriment to
residential amenity. There is a slight concern where the fence runs along the shared side
boundary with No.15 Salisbury Road, adjacent to a small patio area. It was requested that
the applicant consider reducing the fence height along this particular section to 2m but it
was considered that the fence should remain at the proposed 2.4m. Again, whilst the fence
is higher than existing railings, it is not considered that the new fence would be so dominant
as to cause serious issues to warrant refusal.

It is noted that representations have raised the issue of maintenance of planting around the
existing boundary and the need to keep the grass cut within the gap between the existing
and new fence. The school has confirmed that the existing planting along the boundary
and grassed area between the existing and new fences would be cut on a regular basis to
avoid overgrowth along the boundary. Two gates would be installed in the fence to allow
maintenance to be carried out.

The proposed fencing is, on balance, acceptable and complies with UDP Policies CF2
Education Land and Buildings, EN5/1 Crime Prevention and guidance in Supplementary
Planning Document No.3 Planning Out Crime in New Development.

Public Representations - The issues raised by those making representations have been
addressed in the above report. The school has confirmed that they would be carrying out
regular maintenance and grass cutting.

Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development

Rg§e’Ro 8



Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Conditions/ Reasons

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the
date of this permission.
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

2. This decision relates to drawings numbered S9-10409-P-01, P-02/B, P03 and P04
and the development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the
drawings hereby approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

For further information on the application please contact Tom Beirne on 0161 253 5361

P3852"No0 9



Viewpoints

e

N e ——————

-

\ A

e o o o o o

i
NA]

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN

N
APP. NO 68595 / D

-+ Bur
ADDRESS: Wesley Methodist Primary School,

Forth Road, Radcliffe, COUNCIL

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 30



68595

Photo 1

Photo 2

Page 31



68595

Photo 3

Photo 4

A

Page 32



NOTES TO THE CONTRACTOR:- ALL DIMENSIONS AND LEVELS SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING ARE TO BE CHECKED BY THE CONTRACTOR(S) AND ANY
DISCREPANCIES MUST BE REPORTED TO THE DESIGNER PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK ON SITE. THIS DRAWING IS NOT TO BE
SCALED. ALL DIMENSIONS ON THIS DRAWING ARE SHOWN IN MILLIMETRES UNLESS STATED OTHERWISE.

SA131418V3|

Wesley Methodist
Primary School

FORTH ROAD

LN
i

l 93.9m

= o |

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2022, All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

Wesley Methodist PS - Location Plan

Scale 1:1250 @ A3

Page 33

Aspects of this proposal may fall
within the remit of the Party Wall
Etc. Act 1996. If applicable any
affected Adjoining Owners must
be notified by way of a Notice. An
agreement should be obtained
from the Adjoining Owner in
respect of the planned works if
they fall within the scope of the
Act. If applicable you may be
required to appoint a Party Wall
Surveyor.

No works should commence until
plans have been approved by
and/or submitted to the Building
Control officer. Should any works
commence prior to this approval
being issued then this is done
entirely at the client/contractor's
own risk and expense.

The Client must be aware of their
duties under the Construction
(Design & Management)
Regulations 2015 to appoint a
Principal Designer and Principal
Contractor. In the case of
domestic projects the Principal
Contractor is to undertake these
duties on behalf of the client.

A | Planning lssue 13-06-22

Rev | Description Date

Client

Wesley Methodist Primary School
Forth Road, Radcliffe, M26 4PX

Project

Fencing Replacement Works
Wesley Methodist Primary School

Drawing

Location Plan
Wesley Methodist Primary School

Scale Drawn Checked Approved
1:1250@A3 | LE JV JV
Project No. Date

59/10409 10/06/2022

Drawing Identifier

$9-10409-P-01

Stratus9

Consulting

Stratus9 Consulting Ltd
T01772722 217




2.4m X 2.0m WIDE SINGLE LEAF DIG IN 868 MESH GATE

€ abed

ALL GATES WITH 80x80/100x100/120x120
| BOX SECTION HINGE POSTS

ARE TO BE FITTED WITH
TWO GALVANISED EYE BOLTS

2.4m x 2.0m 868 Mesh Gate Specification
Strong and aesthetically pleasing, Dulox 656 and 868
standard gates are available in a range of heights and widths.
The hinges on the gates are inverted to prevent lift off. Mesh
is welded onto all gate frames. Gates come with a lockable
slide latch.

This 2.4m x 2.0m Single Leaf Twin Mesh Gate can be used
to create a point of entry for small vehicles within a Twin
Mesh fencing system of the same height. It consists of a
2.0m wide single gate leaf, which can allow small sized
vehicles such as forklifts to pass in and out. The gate's 2.4m
height makes it more suitable for areas requiring a high level
of security. It's strong, sturdy and safe construction makes it
an ideal choice for a range of public areas, including sports
grounds.

Mesh panel wire manufactured to BS 4102 and galvanised to
BS EN 10244-2:2001 class D

Weld strength is 75% of the minimum tensile strength of the
wire (tensile range 540-690 N/m2)

Post material manufactured to BS EN 10210-2:1997 and
galvanised to BS EN 10346:2009

Panels and posts are powder coated to BS EN 13438:2005
(minimum 100 micron)

All welding carried out in accordance with BS EN 1011-1 and
BS EN 1011-2 by qualified welders (BS EN 287-1)

Each slide latch opening will be covered by a sloped shroud
to prevent use as a foothold.

GATE DIMENSIONS

Height: 2430mm

Access width: 2000mm

Gate Post Box Section: 100 x100mm Hinge Post, 80 x 80mm
Catch Post

Total Gate Width: 2280mm

RIGHT HAND HUNG
(From Outside Looking In)

FILE NAME: 2.4m X 2.0m WIDE SINGLE LEAF 868 MESH GATE KIT

Proposed Gate Elevation
NTS

A |Planning Application 13-06-22
Rev | Description Date
Client

Wesley Methodist Primary School
Forth Road, Radcliffe, M26 4PX

Project

Fencing Replacement Works
Wesley Methodist Primary School

Item| Component Name
A | 868 MESH GATE SLIDER 2.4m X 2.0m WIDE
B [2.4m HIGH DIG IN MESH HINGE GATE POST
100X100 BOX SECTION
C [2.4m HIGH DIG IN MESH CATCH GATE POST
80X80 BOX SECTION
D |ADJUSTABLE GATE EYE BZP 130-150mm
E |UNIVERSAL GATE DROP BOLT
F |60x60 BLACK RIBBED INSERTS
G |80x80 BLACK RIBBED INSERTS
H |100X100 BLACK RIBBED INSERTS

Drawing

2.4m Gate Elevation

Scale

NTS

Drawn

LE

Checked

JV

Approved

JV

Project No.

S$9/10409

Date

05/08/2022

Drawing Identifier

S9 10409-P-04

«*a

st Stratus9

.
o

Stratus9 Consulting Ltd
TO1772722 217
www.stratus9consulting.co.uk

Registered office: Unit & Navigation Business Village, Ashton-on-Ribble, PR 2YP
Registered in England and Wales No. 10261508,




2430

3200

Dulok Lite 656 Mesh Fencing Specification
Multi-use fencing system, Dulok-Lite™ double wire panel
system is suitable anywhere you need anti-cut-through
protection.

Dulok-Lite™ is manufactured from twin 6mm diameter
horizontal wires either side of Smm diameter vertical wires,
providing an excellent defence against vandals and intruders.

Panels are fixed to steel posts using metal clips with
tamper-proof angled returns, which are secured in place with
pin hex screws for added security.

The system also conforms to BS 172214 for open mesh
steel panel fences.

PANEL DIMENSIONS

Height: 2430mm

Panel width: 2506mm

Mesh size: 200 x 50mm

Wire diameter: 5mm Verticals and twin: 6mm
horizontals

Top edge projection: 30mm

POST DIMENSIONS
Posts: 60 x 40mm to 80 x 40mm
RHS: Dependant on height
Clips: 47 x 25mm steel

Post centres: 2520mm

FINISH

Galvanised and polyester powder-coated, after stringent
cleaning and treatment, to give a well adhered coating of a
minimum of 60 microns. RAL 6005,

Ge abed

Proposed Fencing Elevation
1:20 @ A3

A | Planning Application 13-06-22
Rev | Description Date
Client

Wesley Methodist Primary School
Forth Road, Radcliffe, M26 4PX

Project

Fencing Replacement Works
Wesley Methodist Primary School

Drawing

Fencing Elevation
2.4m Dulok Mesh Fencing

Scale Drawn Checked Approved

1:20@A3 LE JV JV

Project No. Date

S9/10409 10/06/2022

Drawing Identifier

S9 10409-P-03

Stratus9 Consulting Ltd
TO1772722 217
www.stratus9consulting.co.uk

Registered offce: Unit & Navigation Business Vilage, Ashton-on-Ribble, PR2 2YP
Registered in England and Wales No. 10261508




NOTES TO THE CONTRACTOR:- ALL DIMENSIONS AND LEVELS SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING ARE TO BE CHECKED BY THE CONTRACTOR(S) AND ANY
DISCREPANCIES MUST BE REPORTED TO THE DESIGNER PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY WORK ON SITE. THIS DRAWING IS NOT TO BE
SCALED. ALL DIMENSIONS ON THIS DRAWING ARE SHOWN IN MILLIMETRES UNLESS STATED OTHERWISE.

.

Sa3ldLsv3

Wesley Methodist
Primary School

FORTH ROAD

(A%

bl =
=0 l“

ev (W

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2022. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

Wesley Methodist PS - Site Plan

Scale 1:1000 @ A3

Page 36

Aspects of this proposal may fall
within the remit of the Party Wall
Etc. Act 1996. If applicable any
affected Adjoining Owners must
be notified by way of a Notice. An
agreement should be obtained
from the Adjoining Owner in
respect of the planned works if
they fall within the scope of the
Act. If applicable you may be
required to appoint a Party Wall
Surveyor.

No works should commence until
plans have been approved by
and/or submitted to the Building
Control officer. Should any works
commence prior to this approval
being issued then this is done
entirely at the client/contractor's
own risk and expense.

The Client must be aware of their
duties under the Construction
(Design & Management)
Regulations 2015 to appoint a
Principal Designer and Principal
Contractor. In the case of
domestic projects the Principal
Contractor is to undertake these
duties on behalf of the client.

—— Boundary Line

— Proposed Fence Line

B [Planning - Gate /Palisade Addition 03-10-22
A |Planning Issue 13-06-22|
Rev | Description Date

Client

Wesley Methodist Primary School
Forth Road, Radcliffe, M26 4PX

Project

Fencing Replacement Works
Wesley Methodist Primary School

Drawing

Site Plan
Wesley Methodist Primary School

Scale Drawn Checked Approved
1:1000@A3 | LE JV JVv
Project No. Date

S9/10409

Drawing Identifier

S$9-10409-P-02-B

10/06/2022

Stratus9

Consulting

Stratus9 Consulting Ltd
T01772722 217




Ward: Ramsbottom and Tottington - ltem 03
Ramsbottom

Applicant: Mr Steven Mort
Location: Land adjacent to 391 Whalley Road, Shuttleworth, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO OER

Proposal: Demolition of existing garages and Erection of 2 no. semi-detached dwellings with
associated parking; Additional off street parking for residents of Whalley Road

Application Ref: 68608/Full Target Date: 23/08/2022
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Description

The site (0.25acres or approximately 0.1ha) is bounded by Whalley Road (A56) to the east,
a private road to the north and a public footpath (110RAM) to the south. The land is
approximately one metre lower than the footway along Whalley Road and slopes gradually
down to the west.

Historically, the land has been a refuse tip (prior to 1976). In more recent years the site
area has been used by local residents for the parking of private vehicles either through the
lease of the six single garages on the site or more informally, on the hardstanding. To the
rear of the existing garages is a small plot of land previously used as a small

holding, which is not part of the application site.

There is a row of stone terraced houses to the south of the public footpath and on the
opposite side of Whalley Road but otherwise the surrounding land is undeveloped.

The proposal is to site a pair of semi-detached houses on the site. The three bed houses
would be two storey in appearance with additional accommodation the roofspace. They
would be located on the eastern side of the site, fronting and set down from Whalley Road.
Vehicular access would be from Whalley Road via the private road to the north. The house
would each have space to park two cars and there would also be five car parking in the
western half of the site for local resident’s parking.

The houses would be traditional in appearance with an overall footprint of around
12m(width) by 11m (depth). The houses would have a pitched roof with a ridge height of
8m and an eaves height of 5.2m. Each property would be finished in red brick and grey tile
and have a small garden to the front and a larger on to the rear.

The scheme has been revised since initial submission and the houses have been reduced
in scale, with the ridge and eaves lowered and rear roofline reconfigured. The gross
footprint of the two semi-detached properties is now 140m? (70m? each)

The total volume measurements are as follows:

e Ground Floor 380m3

e First Floor 284m?3

e Second Floor within roof 180m?

Total Volume 8444m? (422m?3 each)

A reduction in volume of 160m? from that of the earlier scheme.

The driveways on either side would accommodate electric vehicle charging points as would
two of the five managed parking spaces which are intended to serve local residents.

Relevant Planning History

PagR e o 10



02875/E Pre-application enquiry - residential development.

Publicity

The following neighbours were notified by letter dated 02/08/2022. Site notice posted
23/08/2022 and press notice dated 11/08/2022. As a result of this publicity, the following
comments have been received:

¢ Land is Green Belt and development would be inappropriate and set a precedent for
similar in area.

¢ Land was previously used as a refuse tip and there is unlikely to be a record of what
might be buried.

e The provision only includes five parking spaces for local residents. There are many
more spaces available currently on the garages and on the hardstanding (at least 20).

e The road has a 40 mph speed limit and can be extremely hazardous at peak periods,
with bus stops, public house car park and a high volume of heavy vehicles including
farm traffic. Winter and night-time can be very dangerous with violent weather on such
an exposed stretch of road and not everyone has the up to date vehicles that allow for
road side lights etc. Many residents have lost wing mirrors and other damage caused
by fast moving traffic 'squeezing past' parked vehicles.
There is a bat roost somewhere among the garages/trees.
The area and road down to Sheephey is used by cyclists and horse riders. It provides a
short detour around to the church that makes a dangerous fast road section safe. | use
it every day. The garages are not "eyesores" as described.

e The new building will take away light and impact the views from the houses.

e Over the years houses along Whalley road including 391, 389, and the Duckworth Arms

Pub have been flooded due to underground issues which again if the land is disturbed
for groundworks for the new builds could impact the already fragile underground
infrastructure.

Respondents have been informed of the Planning Control committee meeting.

Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations
Traffic Section - No objection.
Environmental Health - No objection.
Public Rights of Way Officer - No objection.
Drainage Section - No objection.

United Utilities - Final Comments awaited.
Waste Management - No Objection.

Pre-start Conditions - Applicant/Agent has agreed with pre-start conditions

Unitary Development Plan and Policies
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
EN1/1 Visual Amenity

EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design

EN1/7 Throughroutes and Gateways
EN5/1 New Development and Flood Risk
EN7 Pollution Control

EN9/1 Special Landscape Areas

OL5/2 Development in River Valleys

H1/2 Further Housing Development

H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development

ENG6 Conservation of the Natural Environment

SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury
SPD16 Design and Layout of New Development in Bury

PR #& 11



Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Policies - Green Belt - National Planning Policy Framework, paragraph 148 recommends
that when considering planning applications, local planning authorities should ensure that
substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green Belt.

Paragraph 149 of the NPPF indicates that construction of new buildings are inappropriate

unless they fall into certain exceptions, including;

¢ limited infilling in villages,

¢ limited infilling or the partial or complete redevelopment of previously developed land,
whether redundant or in continuing use which would not have a greater impact on the
openness of the Green belt than the existing development.

The Unitary Development Plan, adopted in 1997, although outdated in some respects, still
forms the current local development plan.

UDP Policy OL1/2 - New Buildings in the Green Belt. The construction of new buildings
inside the Green Belt is inappropriate development, unless it is for one or more of the
following purposes:

a) agriculture and forestry (except where permitted development rights have been
withdrawn);

b) essential facilities for outdoor sport and outdoor recreation, for cemeteries, and for other
uses of land which preserve the openness of Green Belt and which do not conflict with the
purposes of including land in it;

c) limited extension, alteration or replacement of existing dwellings, provided that this would
not result in disproportionate additions over and above the size of the original dwelling, or,
in the case of replacement of existing dwellings, the new dwelling is not materially larger
than the one it replaces;

d) limited infilling in existing villages as set out under Policy OL1/3.

EN1/1 - Visual Amenity. Development will not be permitted where proposals would have a
detrimental effect on:

a) public views of prominent or important buildings, especially those in areas of architectural
or historic interest;

b) the visual amenity both within, or viewed from, areas of environmental interest such as
the Green Belt, Special Landscape Areas or the river valleys.

H1/2 - Further Housing Development. The Council will have regard to the following factors
when assessing proposals for housing development on sites not identified on the Proposals
Map:

a) the need to direct development towards the urban area;

b) the availability of infrastructure;

c) the need to avoid the release of peripheral open land, unless this can be shown to be
consistent with urban regeneration;

d) the suitability of the site in land use terms with regard to amenity, the nature of the local
environment and surrounding land uses;

e) other policies and proposals of the Plan.

H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development. All new residential development will be
expected to make a positive contribution to the form and quality of the surrounding area.

PagR N0 12



Factors to be considered when assessing proposals will include:

a) the height and roof type of adjacent buildings;

b) the impact of developments on residential amenity;

c) the density and character of the surrounding area;

d) the position and proximity of neighbouring properties;

e) the materials to be used in proposed developments, especially their colour and texture.

H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development. New residential development will be
required to demonstrate acceptable standards of layout. Factors to be considered when
assessing proposals will include:

a) car parking provision;

b) access for both vehicles and pedestrians, and provision for public transport;

c) the possible need for traffic calming measures;

d) density;

e) space about and between dwellings;

f) landscaping and screening;

g) protection/provision of trees and hedgerows;

h) open space/children's play areas;

i) design for safety and security;

j) access/facilities for the disabled;

k) the existence of any public rights of way.

Principle - Housing - The National Planning Policy Framework also sets out the Housing
Delivery Test, which is an assessment of net additional dwellings provided over the
previous three years against the homes required. Where the test indicates that the delivery
of housing was substantially below (less than 75%) of the housing requirement over the
previous years, this needs to be taken into account in the decision-taking process. The
latest results published by the Government show that Bury has a housing delivery test
result of less than 75%, and therefore, this needs to be treated as a material factor when
determining applications for residential development.

Therefore, in relation to the proposed dwelling, paragraph 11d) of the National Planning
Policy Framework states that where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the
policies which are most important for determining the application are out-of-date, planning
permission should be granted unless:

i. The application of policies in the Framework that protect areas, or assets of particular
importance, provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or

ii. Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits, when assessed against the policies in the Framework, taken as a whole.

Therefore, in this case the 'titled balance' applies and planning permission should be
granted unless the above points Para 11(d) i or ii apply.

Principle - Green Belt - The site is situated in the Green Belt but is considered to be
previously developed land, immediately adjacent to a built up area that is 'washed over' by
the Green Belt.

The site is not infill but would be considered as the complete redevelopment of previously
developed land as set out in paragraph 149 of the NPPF. As this is the case, the NPPF
further sets out criteria by which any proposal would be assessed. It indicates that any
development should not have a greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt than the
existing development.

The applicant has set out justification for the development within a supporting statement
that accompanies the application both in terms of how it complies with Green Belt Policy
and if required how it would justify development in terms of very special circumstances.

In terms of whether the proposal complies with the Green Belt Policy in its assessment of
the impact on openness, there is no definition of 'openness' within the NPPF. Recent case

PagR 4 13



law, in particular that of the judgement of Turner v SoS for Communities and Local
Government (2016), it was ruled that The word "openness" is open textured and a number
of factors are capable of being relevant when it comes to applying it to the particular facts
of a specific case. Prominent among these will be factors relevant to how built up the Green
Belt is how built up it would be if redevelopment occurs (in the context of which, volumetric
matters may be a material concern, but are by no means the only one) and factors relevant
to the visual impact on the aspect of openness which the Green Belt presents'.

It could be argued that, in the light of the above and other rulings, 'inappropriateness'
means the effects on 'openness' must not be harmful. The case of Euro Garages v SoS
(May 2018) states 'that it is the openness of the Green Belt that must be considered, not
the site as such'. It goes on to state that 'for there to be a greater impact on the openness
of the Green Belt, there must be something more than just change to the environment'.

The brownfield site comprises six single garages of varying condition and an informal area
used for parking. The proposed two dwellings, if approved, would in terms of the built form,
have a greater impact on the site. However, within the context of the wider environment, the
new build would be set down within the site and viewed as part of the group buildings
formed by the row of terraced housing immediately to the south and across Whalley Road
to the east. The proposal would not encroach into the open countryside/green field land and
as such the impact of the proposal in terms of openness and harm, would be negligible.
Certainly views from the east and south would be restricted by existing development and
views of the development from the north and west would be set against the same buildings
and the slope up to Whalley Road.

In terms of the impact on the openness and character of the Green Belt, the proposal would
not have a harmful impact on the Green Belt, and would be considered, on balance, to be
acceptable and complies with paragraph 149 of the NPPF and UDP Policy OL1/2.

Visual amenity - In terms of general layout, situated adjacent to the row of dwellinghouses
along Whalley Road, the two houses would sit relatively comfortably on the sloping site with
adequate space around them. Set slightly back from Whalley Road but reflecting the linear
residential street pattern, with sufficient parking, refuse storage and private amenity space,
the layout of the proposed dwellings is considered acceptable.

Although set down from the neighbouring houses, the two semi-detached properties are of
a similar general appearance and proportion to those along the existing row. Built from local
natural stone with slate roofing tiles, the houses would be in keeping with the surrounding
properties. The overall appearance of the proposed new dwellings would respect the
window proportions and appearance of the adjacent properties, by incorporating design
features such as stone mullions, sills, and lintels, including a feature bay window detailed in
stone similar to the adjacent property.

Incidental landscaping along the front and side boundaries would soften the development
within the streetscape and the hard landscaping materials would complement the stone
building and provide a serviceable surface for vehicles and general access. New and
repaired stone walls around the site perimeter would match the existing and soft
landscaping at the perimeter will include a small number of new shrubs and trees. Shrubs
and lawned areas are proposed for the domestic curtilage of the properties. The roadway
from Whalley Road into the site will be improved and resurfaced with new Bitmac with a
new pavement on the north side of the road for safe pedestrian access. The proposal would
comply with the NPPF and UDP Policies H1/2, H2/1 and H2/2 in relation to siting, layout
and general appearance.

Permitted Development - It is considered reasonable, given the nature of the site, that
'permitted development' rights for future residents be removed in order to control any
further development on the site in the interests of visual amenity and the Green Belt.

Residential Amenity - The nearest dwelling is No.391 Whalley Road which would be side
PagéNo 14



on to the site. This property has a small secondary window on the main side gable and two
further secondary windows on the side of the outrigger at the rear. Given the nature of the
site and restrictions that would prevent undue overlooking, there are no residential amenity
issues arising. The proposal is acceptable and complies with the NPPF and UDP Policy
H2/1 in this respect.

Access, Parking and Servicing - The existing access point onto Whalley Road has
visibility splays of 2.4mx120m and this is considered to be acceptable for a road speed of
40mph. Private pedestrian access to the properties is provided directly off Whalley Road via
a separate gated pathway with steps leading down to the main entrances to the properties.
Access to the parking area is off the Public Right of Way via new stone steps and also

by way of the new pavement proposed on the existing private access road.

The proposed access arrangements are considered to be appropriate with adequate
visibility. Two parking spaces are proposed for each unit and there is sufficient space for
turning to the rear.

The five additional managed parking spaces for local resident would be less than that
currently available however the current parking arrangements are informal and rather ad
hoc. Maintaining and formalising the parking is not within public control and could be
changed at any time. Whilst the five spaces represent a reduction in parking, the proposal,
if approved, would formalise the parking situation and make it more secure for continued
future use and make provision for electric vehicle charging. It is noted that there is
availability for on-street parking in front of the existing rows of houses adjacent to the site.

Although the site is remote from the existing town centres, it is situated on a main
throughroute and has a bus stop in front of the site.

Refuse storage and collection arrangements from Whalley Road would be acceptable and
comply with UDP Policy H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development .

Ecology - One tree (beech) to the rear of the site would be removed to facilitate the
construction of the 'resident's car park'. This does not appear to be in particularly good
condition and replacement planting along the boundary of the site would be appropriate
mitigation for its loss and this would be secured by a suitable condition. The site as a whole
does not have significant ecological value and indeed may well have levels of
contamination given its history. The redevelopment of the site, including any contamination
mitigation measures that may well be required together with the proposed new
planting/landscaping in and around the site would mitigate any ecological harm if any,
caused. It is considered appropriate to attach a conditions requiring details of tree
planting/landscaping and a bat survey to be undertaken prior to any demolition of the
garages. The proposal, in terms of ecology is acceptable and complies with the NPPF and
UDP Policy EN6 Conservation of the Natural Environment.

Drainage/ Flood Risk - Following questions relating to drainage the applicant has
submitted a drainage plan indicating the nearest existing sewer pipe to the proposed
property is a 225mm diameter pipe and is over 5m away from the building line at its nearest
point. United Utilities have not objected to the proposal and with a condition attached to any
decision notice requiring surface water drainage details to be submitted to and agreed by
the Local planning Authority, the proposal is considered to be acceptable and complies with
the NPPF and UDP Policy EN5/1 New Development and Flood Risk.

Contaminated Land - Given the history of the site and its previous use as a tip, it is
appropriate to attach conditions requiring a contaminated land surveys to be undertaken
prior to commencement of development and the implementation of any necessary
mitigation measures to prevent contamination in the interests of health and safety. This
complies with the NPPF and UDP Policy EN7 Pollution Control.

Objections - Issues raised by objectors have been addressed in the above report. Whilst

PR 40 15



there may be a net loss of informal parking for local residents, this facility, on land outside
the control of those residents using it (or indeed the planning authority), is not guaranteed
and could be terminated by the owner at any time.

Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Conditions/ Reasons

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the
date of this permission.
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

2. This decision relates to Existing block plan 21-14-05, Location and site plan
21-14-01B, Drainage plan 21-14-25, Floor plans 21-14-10A, Elevations
21-14-15-B and streetscape 21-14-20 -A and the development shall not be carried
out except in accordance with the drawings hereby approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

3. Details/Samples of the (materials/bricks) to be used in the external elevations,
together with details of their manufacturer, type/colour and size, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the
development is commenced. Only the approved materials/bricks shall be used for
the construction of the development.

Reason. No material samples have been submitted and are required in the
interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory development pursuant to
UDP Policy EN1/1 Visual Amenity.

4. No development shall commence unless and until:-

e A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority;

¢ Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall
be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority;

e Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed
Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason. The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination and

subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory development

of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas and the wider
environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework Section 15 -

Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

5. Following the provisions of Condition 4 of this planning permission, where
remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to

PagRétio 16



10.

the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and

A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
development being brought into use.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

Any soil or soil forming materials brought to site for use in garden areas, soft
landscaping, filling and level raising shall be tested for contamination and
suitability for use on site. Proposals for contamination testing including testing
schedules, sampling frequencies and allowable contaminant concentrations (as
determined by appropriate risk assessment) and source material information shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to
any soil or soil forming materials being brought onto site, and;

The approved contamination testing shall then be carried out and validatory
evidence (soil descriptions, laboratory certificates, photographs etc) submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the development
being brought into use.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

Notwithstanding the terms of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015, as subsequently amended, no development
shall be carried out within the terms of Classes A to G of Part 1 of Schedule 2 of
the Order, without the submission and approval of a relevant planning application.
Reason. To ensure that future inappropriate alterations or extensions do not occur
pursuant to policies of the Unitary Development Plan listed.

The five car parking spaces not within the curtilage of the proposed houses,
indicated on the approved site plan and being provided in lieu of the existing
garages/parking currently available on the site to local residents, shall be
surfaced, demarcated and made permanently available for (local residents)
parking prior to the first occupation of the proposed dwellings.

Reason. In order to provide off-road parking for local residents in the interests of
highway safety pursuant to UDP Policy HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development.

Prior to the demolition of the garages permitted by this approval, a survey shall be
conducted, and the survey results established as to whether the buildings are
utilised by bats. Following the survey and if required, a programme of mitigation
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All
mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to the commencement of the
works and remain in situ on the site for an agreed period of time.

Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species
pursuant to policies EN6 Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Section
11 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Before the first occupation of the properties hereby approved, the windows at
stairwell windows on the side elevations shall be fitted with obscured glazing and
shall be permanently retained in that condition thereafter.

Reason. To protect the privacy of adjoining occupiers and to accord with Policy

H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development.

PR 4t 17



For further information on the application please contact Tom Beirne on 0161 253 5361

PaggéRo 18



Viewpoints

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN

APP. NO 68608 / D ;
ADDRESS: Land adjacent to 391 Whalley Road,

Shuttleworth, Ramsbottom, COUNCIL

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 46



Photo 2

Page 47



Photo 4

Page 48



Photo 6

Page 49



68608
Photo 7

Page 50



Photo 10

Page 51



NORTH

Existing Block Plan @ 1:500 at A2 =====

iy

A

Qvou A3TIVHM

WHALLEY ROAD

E.ma

I

Drawing
Client
Dwn. By

Scale

Drg. No.

Drg. Size

Date

Project

—

Peel Design Partnership Ltd

Hilpsford

NOTES

® This drawing is copyright. No unauthorised copying of drawing
without the express permission of the architect.

® Do not scale from prints. Use figure dimensions only.

® Contractors to check all dimensions on site prior to
commencement of works.

® All works to be carried out in accordance with current statutory
Health and Safety Regulations.

® This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant
consultants' and / or specialists’ drawings / documents and any
discrepancies or variations are to be notified to the architect
before affected work commences.

REV. AMENDMENTS DATE

PROPOSED NEW DWELLINGS: LAND ADJACENT TO 391 WHLLEY
ROAD, RAMSBOTTOM, BURY BLO 0ER

EXISTING BLOCK PLAN
MR S. MORT

NP

1:500 @ A2

21-14-05

A2

SEPTEMBER 2021

Tel: 01706218170

Email: mail@peeldesigns .co.uk

Web: www.peeldesigns.co.uk
RIBA Chartered Practice 20001293

New Barn Lane Rawtenstall Lancashire  BB4 6HT



NOTES

@ This drawing is copyright. No unauthorised copying of drawing
without the express permission of the architect.

® Do not scale from prints. Use figure dimensions only.

@ Contractors to check all dimensions on site prior to
commencement of works.

@ Allworks to be carried out in accordance with current statutory
Health and Safety Regulations.

®  This drawing is o be read in conjunction with all elevant
consultants'and / or specialists' drawings / documents and any
discrepancies or variations are to be noified to the architect
before affected work commences,

REV.  AMENDMENTS DATE
RevA Ridge Height, front and rear eaves height all
reduced. Windows at front, side and rear
altered. Domer reduced and Balcony removed.
22-10-19

Canopy
HHH innnnnl = -
7] NN ‘ T T e
£ -+
3 om
I S N
= =
m ) A I En-suite Fail| |
3 1 \ -
13 . =
}g Landing | L ‘ .
. 1 Il
: B [ L -
) _T = z ,:
P
| L |- A |3
® : 25 ‘ o8 = :
g = \ Iz =1 |
= 2% ‘ 25 el : |
= 5 : all :
® I S8 ‘ °3 i E
[+ Tt e B : “ B
2= J £F | el j . :
room
1 ——
ol
“ ——
i 4 ddroom 3 E
z £ ! ) ! e
® s 28 ‘ o : :
: g 38 e 2
H 3 | EL e B hl |
§ gé ‘ Sé Té Combi. §
n 2= ‘ 8 Rooflight
>3 | §% | (% ] (%
= = " ; o
: — = §
m T T
g Landing ‘ Lanfing
I
; ] — ¢ Fail | |
; ] | Ll I En-suite =
: I 5
: |
1= 1 |
L : i — EENEnmml
L T

Canopy

Proposed Ground Floor Plan Proposed First Floor Plan Proposed Second Floor Plan

PROPOSED NEW DWELLINGS: LAND ADJACENT TO 391
WHALLEY ROAD, RAMSBOTTOM, BURY BLO 0ER

PROPOSED GROUND, FIRST & SECOND FLOOR PLANS

I  Vasonry construction

[  Timber stud partition MR S. MORT
NP

[  Roof & Dormer construction 150 @At
2144104
At

NOVEMBER 2021

Proposed Plans @1:50 |t " PP

Hipstord  NewBar lane  Rawlensfall  lancashire B84 6HT




Proposed Elevations @1:50 p e _——_"

Ridge 187.14

Split face coursed natural stone

Natural stone smooth cut
sills, lintels & Mullions

Proposed North Elevation

Proposed East Elevation

Silicone, slight textured,
rendered finish colour
"Antique White" or
similar (K-Rend)

Silicone, slight textured,
rendered finish colour
"Antique White" or
similar (K-Rend)

NOTES

* s

drawing is copyright. No unauthorised copying of drawing

without the express permission of the architect.

® Do notscale from prints. Use figure dimensions only.

@ Contractors to check all dimensions on site prior to
commencement of works.

®  Allworks to be carried out in accordance with current statutory
Health and Safety Regulations.

®  This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all elevant
consultants'and / or specialists' drawings / documents and any
discrepancies or variations are to be notified to the architect
before affected work commences.

REV.
Rev A

RevB

M
GL1790 | GL.1789
Natural slate roofing tiles Natural slate roofing tiles
Ridge 187.14
T T
1 I
1 I
1 I
T ——F———— 1 —— ————— ————F— |1
— 1
[
[
5
E
£
Trad-fead sheet roof to Bay S
©
h { ¥ {
777777 | | == = | D Y |
< I e u — —_— T AN
T T
N —
. . Naturat stone feature-bay
- . - Y- window wi hcut sills,
G.L. 179.0 G.L.179.0
| | | | Jintels & Mullion: L1720

Ridge 187.14

8.0m from FFL

Natural slate roofing tiles

Silicone, slight textured,
rendered finish colour
"Antique White" or
similar (K-Rend)

Split face coursed natural stone

Natural stone smooth cut

sills, lintels & Mullions

!’T‘(‘\“ﬂ

G.L. 1789
e |

=

] Gl 1790
1

Proposed South Elevati

on

Natural slate roofing tiles

Ridge 187.14

Natural stone smooth
cutsills & lintels

\

9

Silicone, slight textured,
rendered finish colour

"Antique White" or <

similar (K-Rend)
G.L.178.9

Proposed West Elevation

>

b

DATE
22.04-04

AMENDMENTS
Dimensions added
Ridge Height, front and rear eaves height all
reduced. Windows at front, side and rear altered.

Dormer reduced and Balcony removed.
22-10-19

Natural stone smooth
cut sills & lintels

rendered finish colour
"Antique White" or
similar (K-Rend)

G.L. 1789
GL.1789

Silicone, slight textured,

Vertical Bi-Lite System

PROPOSED NEW DWELLINGS: LAND ADJACENT TO 391
WHALLEY ROAD, RAMSBOTTOM, BURY BLO 0ER

PROPOSED ELEVATIONS
MR S. MORT

NP

150 @ At

21-14-158

Al

DECEMBER 2021

PP

Peel Design Partnership Lid
Hipstord  New Barn Lane

Tel: 01706218170
ail@peeldesigns .co.uk

Web: www.peeldesigns.co.uk
RIBA Chartered Pracfice 20001293

Rawlenstall  lancashire  BB4 6HT



E] Resin bond diveway & paving colour bindle
= -
:I Netural Stone paving and steps

Existing Combined Sewer
Proposed new foul drain
Proposed new surface water drain

‘ For existing & Proposed Drainage
‘ Details see drawing No: 21-14-25

S .
NORTH b :

202 A VIS SPI8Y

Garden |
Shedibike store

@ Existing Ground Levels
s+ Proposed Ground Levels.

\= |
\ a |l | Garden |
\ 3 Sheatike store |
Electic Vehicle 5
Charging Point

1
WHALLEY ROAD

o : A ©
Exstng tree ¥ e s

Proposed Block Plan @ 1:200 at A2 =—==—=

NOTES
® This drawing is copyright. No unauthorised copying of drawing
without the express permission of the architect.
379900m 380000m 380100m ® Do not scale from prints. Use figure dimensions only.
418300m 418300m ® Contractors to check all dimensions on site prior to
commencement of works.
® All works to be carried out in accordance with current statutory
Health and Safety Regulations.
® This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant
and/or i drawings / and any
discrepancies or variations are to be notified to the architect
before affected work commences.
REV. AMENDMENTS DATE
Rev A Drainage and additional notes added 22-04-06
Rev B Ridge Height, front and rear eaves height all
reduced. Windows at front, side and rear
altered. Dormer reduced and Balcony removed.
Roof Plan altered. 22-10-19
NORTH
418200m 418200m
0
Project PROPOSED NEW DWELLINGS: LAND ADJACENT TO 391 WHLLEY
g ROAD, RAMSBOTTOM, BURY BLO OER
o Drawing LOCATION PLAN & PROPOSED BLOCK PLAN
2 —
& \H= Client MR S. MORT
2
Z  LOVELANE L Dwn. By NP
Scale 1:1250 @ A2
Drg. No. 21-14-01-B
418100m 418100m g No 0
Drg. Size| A2
379900m 380000m 380100m
Date SEPTEMBER 2021
©Crown Copyright and database rights 2021 OS Licence no. 100019980

P P %3::?'] :v?::gple;%delslgns .co.:k
leb: www.pe ESan.;T).:OIZ?s
Location Plan @ 1:1250 at A2 ==—=—=—Rage 55 R s e

Hilpsford New Barn Lane Rawtenstall Lancashire BB4 6HT



Proposed Street Elevation @ 1:100 iom—im=——_"

391 Whalley Road

i reign 1903

Proposed Street Elevation @ 1:100 &

400 Whalley Road

Whalley Road

Proposed Street Section @ 1:100 —=r———r—=—="

Proposed New Semi detached property

Existing (elograph pole

Gate Gate

391 Whalley Road

Riggonogn 1603

Grey shaded area is the

Existing stone wall

Existing
Pavement

Site Access Road

Proposed new semi detached property

Gable of 391 Whalley Road

NOTES

This drawing is copyright. No unauthorised copying of drawing
without the express permission of the architect.

Do ot scale from prints. Use figure dimensions only.

Contractors to check all dimensions on site prior to
commencerment of works.

All works to be carried out in accordance with current statutory
Health and Safety Regulations.

This drawing s to be read in conjunction uith all relevant
consultants"and  or specialists'drawings / documents and any
discrepancies or variations are to be nofified to the architect
before affected work commences.

REV.  AMENDMENTS DATE
RevA Ridge Height, front and rear eaves height all
reduced, Windows at front, side and rear altered.

Dormer reduced and Balcony removed.
22-10-19

PROPOSED NEW DWELLINGS: LAND ADJACENT TO 391
WHALLEY ROAD, RAMSBOTTOM, BURY BLO OER

PROPOSED STREET ELEVATIONS

Client MR S. MORT
Dwn.By | NP
Scale 1:100 @ At

Drg. Size| A1

Date

MARCH 2022

Tet: 01706218170

Email: mail@peeldesigns .co.uk
Web: www.peeldesigns.co.uk

RIBA Chartered Practice 20001293

Pocl Design Partnership Ltd
Hipsiord  NewBarn lane  Rawlensiall  lancashire 884 6HT



Existing Water Supply

Existing Combined Sewer
Proposed new foul drain
Proposed new surface water drain

225G Foul
Viater supply

Wiater supply

T Ersing stone boundary vl
]
£
s

150 VC Foul

150 VC Foul
I

Water supply
Water supply

Project

Drawing

Client

Dwn. By

Scale

Drg. No.

Drg. Size

Date

—

Drainage Block Plan @ 1:200 at A2

Hilpsford

e s« m
Page 57 Peel Design Partnership Ltd

NOTES

® This drawing is copyright. No unauthorised copying of drawing
without the express permission of the architect.

® Do not scale from prints. Use figure dimensions only.

® Contractors to check all dimensions on site prior to
commencement of works.

® All works to be carried out in accordance with current statutory
Health and Safety Regulations.

® This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant
and/or ialists' drawings / and any
discrepancies or variations are to be notified to the architect
before affected work commences.

REV. AMENDMENTS DATE

179.5m
Shelter

225 VC Foul
Viater supply

WHALLEY ROAD

225VC Foul
Water supply

PROPOSED NEW DWELLINGS: LAND ADJACENT TO 391 WHLLEY
ROAD, RAMSBOTTOM, BURY BLO OER

EXISTING & PROPOSED DRAINAGE BLOCK PLAN
MR S. MORT

NP

1:1250 @ A2

21-14-25

A2

SEPTEMBER 2022

Tel: 01706218170
Email: mail@peeldesigns .co.uk
Web: www.peeldesigns.co.uk

RIBA Chartered Practice 20001293

New Barn Lane Rawtenstall Lancashire  BB4 6HT



This page is intentionally left blank



Ward: North Manor Item

Applicant: Ms Sharon Brearley

Location: Land adjacent to 51 Humber Drive, Bury, BL9 6SJ

Proposal: Erection of 2 no. semi detached dwellings.

Application Ref: 68633/Full Target Date: 29/08/2022
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Description

The application site is unallocated and forms part of the garden to No. 51 Humber Drive.
The site is located at the end of a cul-de-sac between Humber Drive and Trent Drive and
the site slopes from front to back. There is 1 tree on the site.

There are residential properties to the south and east of the site. There are trees on the
northern and western boundaries, with open land beyond, which is allocated as river valley
in the UDP.

Planning permission was granted in October 2017 for the erection of 2 dwellings on this
site. The proposed dwellings would be one and a half storeys to the front and two and a
half storeys at the rear to take account of the sloping site. The proposed dwellings would be
constructed from brick with grey roof tiles. The main difference between the previously
approved and this application is the materials for the proposed dwellings, which would be
brick and tile.

The proposed development involves the erection of 2 dwellings, which would be accessed
from Humber Drive. The proposed dwellings were shown to be one and a half storeys to the
front and two and a half storeys at the rear to take account of the sloping site. The
proposed dwellings would be constructed from red brick with grey roof tiles

Relevant Planning History
61829 - Erection of 2 no. semi-detached dwellings with detached garages at 51 Humber
Drive, Bury. Approved with conditions - 25 October 2017

68283 - Erection of 2 semi-detached dwellings at land adjacent to 51 Humber Drive, Bury.
Withdrawn - 13 June 2022.

Publicity
The neighbouring properties were notified by means of a letter on 2 August 2022.

4 letters have been received, which have raised the following issues:

e The proposed dwelling will greatly impact upon our privacy as we live in a bungalow and
the proposed house is three storeys high. It will look directly into our living room and
bedroom.

e Parking is already difficult due to Humber Drive being a T - junction. Also Trent Drive
being a blind corner, it will prevent them being able to gain a clear view in order to exit
Trent Drive onto Humber Drive. The extra cars will cause obstructions and in an
emergency it will prevent emergency services gaining access to Trent Drive.

¢ It will have a detrimental effect on wildlife and trees already established on the land. It is
home to many mature trees and | have personally seen deer, foxes, owls, wood pigeons
and hedgehogs on the land.

PagReNo 19

04



e The proposed development is not in keeping with the rest of the estate and existing
homes and finally these will not be affordable homes.

¢ We believe that the steepness of the land where permission is being sought is too steep
at the rear to build upon and would be very dangerous.

e There has already been significant local development with over three hundred homes
built on Bevis Green, there is no further need to destroy wildlife for two extra homes just
for greed.

e There is a lot of traffic for the clubhouse, and houses and we don't need any more
houses or traffic on the estate.

e We believe the land not to be suitable and certainly not in keeping with the existing
surrounding properties.

¢ Wildlife in this area shall be affected along with the destruction of the existing trees.

The neighbouring properties were notified of revised plans on 25 October 2022. Any
comments received will be reported in the Supplementary Report.

The objectors have been notified of the Planning Control Committee meeting.

Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations

Traffic Section - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to
construction traffic management plan, footway alterations and car parking.

Drainage Section - No response.

Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No objections, subject to the inclusion of
conditions relating to contaminated land.

Waste Management - No response.

United Utilities - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to drainage.

Pre-start Conditions - Awaiting confirmation from the agent that pre-commencement
conditions are acceptable.

Unitary Development Plan and Policies

H1/2 Further Housing Development

H1/2 Further Housing Development

H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development
H2/6 Garden and Backland Development

EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design
EN1/3 Landscaping Provision

ENG Conservation of the Natural Environment

ENG6/3 Features of Ecological Value

EN7 Pollution Control

EN7/5 Waste Water Management

EN8 Woodland and Trees

HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development

HT4 New Development

SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

PR &8 20



Principle - The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) should be treated as a
material planning consideration and it emphasises the need for local planning authorities to
boost the supply of housing to meet local housing targets in both the short and long term.
The Framework maintains the emphasis on identifying a rolling five year supply of
deliverable housing land.

Bury's Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment sets out the latest housing supply
position, which is made up of sites that have an extant planning permission and sites that
have potential to obtain planning permission in the future. This shows that there are a
number of sites within the Borough with the potential to deliver a significant amount of
housing. However, not all of these sites will contribute to the five year supply calculations as
many sites will take longer than five years to come forward and be fully developed (e.g.
some large sites could take up to ten years to be completed). As such, latest monitoring
indicates that the Council is unable to demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing
land and this needs to be treated as a material factor when determining applications for
residential developments.

The National Planning Policy Framework also sets out the Housing Delivery Test, which is
an assessment of net additional dwellings provided over the previous three years against
the homes required. Where the test indicates that the delivery of housing was substantially
below (less than 75%) of the housing requirement over the previous years, this needs to be
taken into account in the decision-taking process. The latest results published by the
Government show that Bury has a housing delivery test result of less than 75%, and
therefore, this needs to be treated as a material factor when determining applications for
residential development.

Therefore, in relation to the proposed dwelling, paragraph 11d) of the National Planning
Policy Framework states that where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the
policies which are most important for determining the application are out-of-date, planning
permission should be granted unless:

i. The application of policies in the Framework that protect areas, or assets of particular
importance, provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or

ii. Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits, when assessed against the policies in the Framework, taken as a whole.

Therefore, in this case the 'titled balance' applies and planning permission should be
granted unless the above points Para 11(d) i or ii apply.

Policy H1/2 states that the Council will have regard to various factors when assessing a
proposal for residential development, including whether the proposal is within the urban
area, the availability of infrastructure and the suitability of the site, with regard to amenity,
the nature of the local environment and the surrounding land uses.

The site is located within the urban boundary and there are residential properties to the east
and south and open land to the north and west. The proposed development would not
conflict with the surrounding land uses and would be located in a sustainable location with
regard to public transport and services. Planning permission was granted on this site for 2
residential dwellings in 2017. Therefore, the proposed development would be acceptable in
principle and would be in accordance with Policy H1/2 of the Bury Unitary Development
Plan.

Design and layout - The proposed development would provide a pair of semi-detached
dwellings. The proposed dwellings would be a storey and a half in height to the front and
two and a half storeys at the rear. The proposed dwellings would be constructed from brick,
render and grey roof tiles and would be modern in design. The use of the proposed
materials and the use of dormers and pike details would help to break up the elevations
and add visual interest. As such, the proposed dwellings would not be a prominent feature
within the streetscene.

PagR&No 21



The level of private amenity space for the proposed dwellings would be acceptable and
there would be space within the side garden for bin storage, which would be screened by a
close timber boarded fence. One tree on site would need to be removed, but this tree is of
poor quality and it would be replaced as part of the landscaping plan. There would be
gabion walls to the rear of the site and close boarded timber fencing to the rear and side,
which would be acceptable in the locality. Therefore, the proposed development would not
be a prominent feature in the streetscene and would be in accordance with Policies EN1/2,
H2/1 and H2/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Impact upon residential amenity - SPD 6 provides guidance on aspect standards
between residential properties and would be relevant in this case. There should be a
minimum of 20 metres between directly facing habitable room windows, which is based
upon a two storey development. A habitable room window is a lounge, dining room or
bedroom

There would be a minimum of 22.8 metres between the proposed dwellings and the gable
of No. 1 Trent Drive and 20.6 metres between the proposed dwellings and No. 42 Humber
Drive, which would be in excess of the aspect standards.

There is a window at first floor level in the gable elevation of No. 51 Humber Drive and
there would be 10.6 metres between the gable of No. 51 Humber Drive and the gable of the
proposed dwellings. As the proposed dwellings would be one and a half storeys above the
ground level, a distance of 10 metres would be acceptable.

There would be a minimum of 7.8 metres from the rear elevation of the proposed dwellings
to the boundary, which would comply with the aspect standards. The proposed juliet
balconies would be located on the rear and would not have a significant adverse impact
upon the amenity of the neighbouring properties. Therefore, the proposed development
would not have an adverse impact upon the amenity of the neighbouring residential
properties.

Highways issues - The proposed development would be accessed from driveways from
Humber Drive at the end of the cul-de-sac. There would be acceptable levels of visibility.
The Traffic Section has no objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to
construction traffic management plan, footway alterations and car parking. Therefore, the
proposed development would not be detrimental to highway safety and would be in
accordance with Policies H2/1 and H2/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Parking - SPD11 states that the maximum number of parking spaces is 2 spaces per 3
bedroom dwelling, which equates to 4 spaces.

The proposed development would provide 1 space for each of the dwellings and an integral
garage for both properties. As such, 2 spaces would be provided for each dwelling, which
would comply with the maximum parking standards. Therefore, the proposed development
would comply with Policy HT2/4 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and SPD11

Response to objectors
o The issues relating to design, layout, highways issues and impact upon residential
amenity have been addressed in the report above.

Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local

fo 22



Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Conditions/ Reasons

1.

The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the
date of this permission.

Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

This decision relates to drawings numbered SB1-00, SB1-01, SB1-02B, SB1-03,
SB1-04B, SB1-05B, SB1-06B, SB1-07B and the development shall not be carried
out except in accordance with the drawings hereby approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

Details/Samples of the (materials/bricks) to be used in the external elevations,
together with details of their manufacturer, type/colour and size, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the
development is commenced. Only the approved materials/bricks shall be used for
the construction of the development.

Reason. No material samples have been submitted and are required in the
interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory development pursuant to
UDP Policy EN1/1 Visual Amenity.

No development shall commence unless and until:-

e A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority;

¢ Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall
be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority;

e Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed
Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason. The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination and

subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory development

of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas and the wider
environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework Section 15 -

Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

Following the provisions of Condition 4 of this planning permission, where
remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and

A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
development being brought into use.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

No development shall commence unless and until surface water drainage
proposals have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme should be in accordance with the submitted Surface Water

PagR &0 23



Sustainable Drainage Assessment and must be based on the hierarchy of
drainage options in the National Planning Practice Guidance and be designed in
accordance with the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage
Systems (March 2015). This must include assessment of potential SuDS options
for surface water drainage with appropriate calculations and test results to support
the chosen solution. Details of proposed maintenance arrangements should also
be provided. The approved scheme only shall be implemented prior to first
occupation and thereafter maintained.

Reason. The current application contains insufficient information regarding the
proposed drainage scheme to fully assess the impact. To promote sustainable
development and reduce flood risk pursuant to Unitary Development Plan Policies
EN5/1- New Development and Flood Risk , EN7/3 - Water Pollution and EN7/5 -
Waste Water Management and chapter 14 - Meeting the challenge of climate
change, flooding and coastal change of the NPPF.

A landscaping scheme shall be submitted to, and approved by the Local Planning
Authority prior to the commencement of the development. The contents of the
plan should include native tree and shrub planting and the provision of bat
bricks/tubes within the new development and bat and bird boxes. The approved
scheme shall thereafter be implemented not later than 12 months from the date
the building(s) is first occupied or within the first available tree planting season,;
and any trees or shrubs removed, dying or becoming severely damaged or
becoming severely diseased within five years of planting shall be replaced by
trees or shrubs of a similar size or species to those originally required to be
planted.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of
visual amenity pursuant to Policies H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential
Development, EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2 - Woodland and
Tree Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and chapter 15 - Conserving
and enhancing the natural environment of the NPPF.

No development shall commence unless and until a 'Construction Traffic
Management Plan' (CTMP), has been submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority and shall confirm/provide the following:

e Photographic dilapidation survey of the footways and carriageways abutting
the site in the event that subsequent remedial works are required following
construction of the development and as a result of any statutory undertakers
connections to the new dwellings;

e Access point for construction traffic from the adopted highway;

Site hoardings (if proposed) clear of the adopted highway;

Hours of operation, confirmation of demolition, delivery and construction
vehicle sizes that can be accommodated on the residential estate roads that
serve the site and number of vehicle movements;

¢ A scheme of appropriate warning/construction traffic signage in the vicinity of
the site and its access;

e Parking on site (or on land under the applicant's control) of operatives' and
construction vehicles together with storage on site of construction materials,
including any requisite phasing of the development to accommodate this;

e Measures to ensure that all mud and other loose materials are not spread onto
the adjacent adopted highways as a result of the groundworks operations or
carried on the wheels and chassis of any vehicles leaving the site and
measures to minimise dust nuisance caused by the operations.

The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the demolition/construction
period and the measures shall be retained and facilities used for the intended
purpose for the duration of the demolition and construction periods. The areas
identified shall not be used for any other purposes other than the turning/parking
of vehicles and storage of demolition/construction materials.

PR G 24



Reason. Information not submitted at application stage. To mitigate the impact of
the construction traffic generated by the proposed development on the adjacent
residential streets, and ensure adequate off street car parking provision and
materials storage arrangements for the duration of the construction period and
that the adopted highways are kept free of deposited material from the ground
works operations, in the interests of highway safety pursuant to Bury Unitary
Development Plan Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and HT6/2 -
Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict.

9. Notwithstanding the details indicated on the approved plans, the development
hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until the formation of the
proposed footway crossings onto Humber Drive, incorporating the refurbishment
of the section of footway abutting the site affected by the proposed development
and statutory undertakers connections to the proposed dwellings and all
associated highway remedial works, has been implemented to a scope and
specification to be agreed and to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of highway
safety, ensure good highway design and maintain the integrity of the adopted
highway pursuant to the following Policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan:
Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design

Policy H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development

Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development

10.  The car parking arrangements indicated on the approved plans incorporating
garage spaces and 5.5m minimum length hardstandings in front the proposed
garage doors shall be made available for use prior to the dwellings hereby
approved being occupied and thereafter maintained at all times.

Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of
road safety pursuant to Policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development of the
Bury Unitary Development Plan.

For further information on the application please contact Helen Leach on 0161 253 5322

PagR&No 25



Viewpoints

1t012
14
Mill House

Egerton House

&
&

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN

APP. NO 68633

ADDRESS: Land adjacent to 51 Humber Drive, /

Bury, BL9 6SJ]

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

COUNCIL

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 66




68633
Photo 1

Photo 2




Page 68



% TRENT DRIVE
[ ]

<]
SZA—
=
HUMBER DRIVE

B Front bay reduced 19.10.2022
A Three storey dwellings 02.07.2022

0 10 20 30 m

Land adjacent 51 Humber Drive

Bury

BL9 6S] scale 1:500 at A4
March 2022

SB1-02B Proposed Block Plan

PPY design Ltd

Page 69



O
O x
ey e\“\
o€ .

e
<o

VU9'Y
3ona3 40 404

N

GLYEV
BLYEL
P

ToP OF

+134.05

+134.60 J
+134.566

Y% :
135.01
////I;ﬂ +134.54
¢ /// /
- 7
X
' 4 |
/
/
_ 72 /
/
7 ; -
, EAVES Lever
/
/ « ]
+ 22 7 w3z
§ 2y
‘ I .
1 /
- 13356 J RIDGE LEVEL
19026+ /% o _ S e e 139.95
.71 TOP OF Fence %@ESROOF / EAVES LevEL
/
/
- g
—__DHfisEye 3
130,80 +
132,35
2 vz g
2 8
3 7 s FLATROOF
2 v 3 s
-
, -
/ -7
/ e
/ -
/ e - + 1371,
N / . - FE Hatkoor
N / - - 58
N 4 - =m
h // e - R
N - 2
fr} ’ T m
g P
H _
g
3
N B Front bay reduced 19.10.2022
N A Revisedto 3 storey version  24.06 2022
N
AN This drawing and desion concept is the
N property of PPY design. |t shald nok
N
S be reproduced withaut writken permission
-
AN 32 01 2 3 456 7 m
AN 58 P T
~ - e
I
AN E Land adjacent 51 Humber Drive
N - Bury
N BLY 6S) scale 1:100 at AL
N, March 2022
N
N
N
N SB1-04B  Proposed Topo Survey
N ~
N
N PPY design Ltd
~. E‘
N
N 2 Helmshore Road, Hdlcombe Village
N Ramsbottom, Lancashire LS 4PA

Gary Dearden BAChons) Diphrch KIBA
agary@ppy-desian.couk www.ppy-desian.couk

Page 70 1. OI706 822771 M. O7712 669482




|

O

Proposed First Floor

Garage

Dining

< IS

—

T T
P 3 / f
v v
Bedroom 2 Bedroom 2
1f r
N NS ZEAN|
i
Bedroom 3
alk in
wardrobe En:Suite Bathrm
1

I

Living

T f

Living

VV

Hall
wc

H

Proposed Ground Floor

Garden Store

—

Y

Walk in
wardrobe

Master Bedroom

Hall

Master Bedroom

En-Suite

En-Suite

/
:2chen

Dining

Garage

Garden Store

Walk in
wardrobe

Proposed Lower Ground Floor

Page 71

This drawig and desian concept. s the
property of PPY desian. It shald not
be reproduced withaut written permission

2 Helmshore Road, Hdlcombe Village
Ramsbottom,

Lancashire L8 4PA

Front bay reduced 19.10.2022
Revised to three storey 02.07.2022
1 2 3 m

Land adjacent 51 Humber Drive

Bury
BLY 651 scale 1:50 at Al
June 2022

SB1-05B  Proposed Layout Plans

PPY design Ltd




2. abed

== " Proposed Side Elevation

Proposed Front Elevation

Proposed Side Elevation

Proposed Rear Elevation

This drawing and desion concept is the

property of PPY desian It should ot
be reproduced withat written permission

2 Helmshare Koad, Hdcombe +/llage
Ramebottom, Lancashire L8 4PA

Oary Dearden PAChons) Diphrch RIZA

oary@ppy-

S

ouk w

>w

Front bay reduced 19.10.2022
Revised to three storey 02.07.2022
1 2 3 m

Land adjacent 51 Humber Drive

Bury
BL9 6S] scale 1:50 at Al
June 2022

SB1-06B  Proposed Elevations

PPY design Ltd




§ g

——— [l B——=

[Eu]
g
I[
=
—

I

11

Existing Street Scene along Humber Drive

Jl abed

j g

—— | [l B=———

¢

Tl Cd T

1T

11

Proposed Street Scene along Humber Drive

Existing Site Section

Proposed Site Section

B Front bay reduced 19.10.2022
A Revised to 3 storey scheme 24.06.2022

012 3 456 7 m

AAAAAAA

Land adjacent 51 Humber Drive

Bury
BL9 65) scale 1:100 at AL
May 2022

Existing and Proposed

SB1-07B  street Scenes and
Site Sections

PPY design Ltd




This page is intentionally left blank



Ward: Radcliffe - North and Ainsworth ltem 05

Applicant: PEL Electrical Ltd
Location: Ainsworth Nursing Home, Knowsley Road, Ainsworth, Bolton, BL2 5PT

Proposal: Erection of a dwelling and associated access, parking and landscaping, provision of
landscape buffer, and change of use and refurbishment of Gate House within the
curtilage of the former Ainsworth Nursing Home.

Application Ref: 68661/Full Target Date: 05/09/2022
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Description

The site relates to a plot and building which forms part of the former Ainsworth Nursing
Home. It is accessed via a private lane which is formed from the top of Ainsworth Road.
The whole site is located in the Green Belt, Special Landscape Area and West Pennine
Moors and is on the Council's Draft local list as a Non-Designated Heritage Asset. The site
is covered by a blanket TPO.

The site is located to the north of Ainsworth Village and is self-contained and remote from
the rest of the village, nearby farm settlements and residential dwellings, having formally
being an isolation hospital for infectious diseases. It was later used as a nursing home for
the elderly up until the time it closed down.

The nursing home site is rectangular in shape and the existing built development is
generally focused centrally within the site, with the main internal access running north
through the site which branches to the east to serve the main building and other buildings
to the north. The remaining land is grassed, treed or vegetated. Surrounding the site is
open land and fields.

By way of background, the site has now been sold off as separate plots and three plots
have planning permission for the conversion to residential dwellings with alterations and
extensions.

This application relates to a plot of land to the southwest of the former Ainsworth nursing
home site. The site contains a small brick building, which was in use as a gatehouse. The
remainder of the site is open and there are trees on the perimeter.

The proposed development involves the erection of a single dwelling and the conversion of
the gatehouse into living accommodation. The proposed dwelling would be two storeys at
the front and single storey with dormers at the rear. The dwelling would be constructed from
brick with a slate roof and would be accessed via the existing access.

Relevant Planning History

67342 - Erection of two dwellings and associated access, parking and landscaping,
provision of landscape buffer; Change of use and refurbishment of Gate House within the
curtilage of the former Ainsworth Nursing Home - Withdrawn by Applicant 11/07/2022

Adjacent site
65412 - Conversion of wash house to 1 no. dwelling with single storey extensions and

dormer to rear at Ainsworth nursing home, Knowsley Road, Ainsworth. Approved with
conditions - 22 June 2020.

PadRdNo 26



65626 - Conversion of property to 1 no. residential building; increase to the roof height, two
storey extension and associated parking and landscaping, change of use of land to
residential garden at The Bungalow, Ainsworth Nursing Home, Knowsley Road, Ainsworth.
Received - 7 July 2020

66142 - Change of use from nursing home to private dwelling including alterations and
garage extension at Knowsley House, Knowsley Road, Ainsworth. Approved with conditions
- 21 January 2021

66398 - Non-material amendment following grant of planning permission 65412 - Removal
of two windows on the west elevation and replace with timber French doors at Ainsworth
Nursing Home, Knowsley Road, Ainsworth. Approved with conditions - 5 February 2021.

66467 - Variation of conditions following approval of 65626- Amendment to approved plans
with the addition of a porch at The Bungalow, Ainsworth Nursing Home, Knowsley Road,
Ainsworth. Approved with conditions - 29 March 2021

66763 - Demolition of existing nursing home and construction of two storey detached
dwelling with associated garages at Ainsworth Nursing Home, Knowsley Road, Ainsworth.
Refused - 8 December 2021

66836 - Demolition of the building known as 'The Haven', and the erection of a replacement
building for use as a private dwellinghouse, with associated garden curtilage and parking at
The Haven, part of Ainsworth Nursing Home, Knowsley Road, Ainsworth. Approved with
conditions - 22 July 2021.

67368 - Demolition of existing building to be replaced with 2 no. dwellings at the Coach
House, former Ainsworth Nursing Home, Knowsley Road, Ainsworth. Refused - 30
November 2021.

68665 - Demolition and conversion of the building known as 'The Haven' to 1 no. private
residential dwelling, with associated garden curtilage and parking at 5 Knowsley View, The
Haven, Knowsley Road, Ainsworth. Received - 18 August 2022.

Publicity
The neighbouring properties were notified by means of a letter on 22 August and a press

notice was published in the Bury Times on 25 August 2022. Site notices were posted on 31
August 2022.

1 letter of support has been received, which has raised the following issues:
e | am in favour of the proposed scheme, it keeps the gatehouse and puts it to good use.
e This site is now looking dilapidated and run down in parts, the buildings that have been
renovated and made into private dwellings look great and are a huge improvement.
¢ | don't understand the objections of the nearby properties because at the moment the
plot is overgrown and unsightly, it was obvious when all the plots were sold off one by
one and are owned by other individuals that many similar applications will be submitted
in due course.

e As far as I'm concerned this scheme will greatly enhance the site.

5 letters have been received, which have raised the following issues:

e We are happy to support the conversion/development of the original gate house, but
cannot support the further development of this part of the site with a completely new
building on Green Belt land. Normally planning would only be countenanced in building
over an existing footprint.

e The placement of the proposed development will block out all my views/open aspects
onto the green belt land to the front of the house.

e The proposed development would block sunlight as the property is on such a large

scale within a green belt area.
PR (& 27



o If the property is placed alongside my property, as my property is a dormer bungalow
and considerably lower in height, the new build would be directly looking into my skylight
widows two of which are bathroom and not frosted and the other a child's bedroom. This
would infringe on privacy and block out all natural light coming into my home and again
block open aspects of the green belt land.

¢ If the planned house was central, ensuring not blocking my views or overlooking my
house, | would have no objections

¢ No existing drainage is available on this site for foul sewage. The application states
otherwise which is incorrect. Surely this must be addressed prior to any kind of approval
being granted. Also, the boundary fencing must be of stockproof construction

¢ | have serious misgivings. The plot is nearly an acre in size and yet the proposal is to
squeeze the new house tight to the northern boundary of the site right up against mine.

¢ As my house is south facing, and we would be at right angles to the new property there
are serious implications with regards to light being blocked into my kitchen and living
rooms, especially if the house were to be moved forward from its current location (which
I understand to be the case). The site is surrounded by tree's and light is already an
issue.

e Also the proposal is for a 2 storey house which would tower over mine, | was told this
was not an option at my planning stage, given that nearly all of the buildings on site are
single storey.

¢ Were the proposal a single storey dormer bungalow type (like mine) more central and
not as high, | would not object. | think there is ample space to achieve the same size
dwelling in this format.

The supporters and objectors have been notified of the Planning Control Committee
meeting.

Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations

Traffic Section - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to
construction traffic management plan, car parking, turning facilities and sprinklers.
Drainage Section - No response.

Waste Management - No response.

Conservation Officer -

Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No objections, subject to the inclusion of
conditions relating to contaminated land.

United Utilities - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to drainage.
GM Ecology Unit - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to bats,
nesting birds and landscaping and informatives relating to invasive species and badgers.
Environment Agency - No response.

Pre-start Conditions - Awaiting confirmation from the agent that pre-commencement
conditions are acceptable.

Unitary Development Plan and Policies

H1/2 Further Housing Development
H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development

EN1/1 Visual Amenity
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design
EN1/3 Landscaping Provision

EN2 Conservation and Listed Buildings
EN5/1 New Development and Flood Risk
EN1 Built Environment

ENG6/3 Features of Ecological Value

EN7 Pollution Control

EN7/1 Atmospheric Pollution
EN7/2 Noise Pollution
EN7/5 Waste Water Management

PdRd No 28



EN8 Woodland and Trees

OL1/2 New Buildings in the Green Belt

OL1/3 Infilling in Existing Villages in the Green Belt
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development

HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict

SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

Issues and Analysis

The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be
specifically mentioned.

Principle (Green Belt) - The application site is located within the Green Belt.

Paragraph 143 of the NPPF states that inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful
to the Green Belt and should not be approved except in Very Special Circumstances (VSC).

In Paragraph 144, LPA's should ensure that substantial weight is given to any harm in the
Green Belt. VSC will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of
inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the proposal, is clearly outweighed by
other considerations.

Paragraph 145 considers the construction of new buildings as inappropriate development in

the Green Belt. Exceptions to this are:
a. buildings for agriculture and forestry;
b. provision of appropriate facilities for outdoor sport, recreation, cemeteries and burial
grounds and allotments; as long as the facilities preserve the openness of the Green
belt and do not conflict with the purpose of including land;
c. the extension or alteration of a building provided it does not result in disproportionate
additions over and above the size of the original building;
d. the replacement of a building provided the new building is in the same use and not
materially larger than the one it replaces;
e. limited infilling in villages;
f. limited affordable housing for local community needs; and
g. limited infilling or partial or complete redevelopment of previously developed land,
whether redundant or in continuing use (excluding temporary buildings), which would:
¢ not have a greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt than the existing
development: or

¢ not cause substantial harm to the openness of the Green Belt, where the
development would re--use previously developed land and contribute to meeting
identified affordable housing need within the area of the Local Planning Authority.

Paragraph 146 states that other certain forms of development are also not inappropriate in

the Green Belt provided they preserve the openness of the Green Belt and do not conflict

with the purposes of including land in the Green Belt. These are

e engineering operations;

¢ local transport infrastructure, which can demonstrate a requirement for a Green Belt
location;

¢ the re-use of buildings provided that the buildings are of permanent and substantial
construction;

e material changes in the use of land (such as changes for outdoor sport or recreation, or
for cemeteries and burial grounds); and

PR f& 29



e development brought forward under a Community Right to Build Order or
Neighbourhood Development Order.

Policy OL1/2 states that the construction of new buildings in the Green Belt is inappropriate
development unless -

e for agriculture and forestry,

e essential facilities for outdoor sports and recreation,

o limited extension, alteration or replacement dwelling provided it would not result in
disproportionate additions over and above the size of the original dwelling or not
materially larger than the one it is to replace;

e limited infilling in existing villages as set out under Policy OL1/3.

Policy OL1/3 states in all named villages which lie within the Green Belt, limited infill
development may be permitted, provided it is in scale with the village and would not
adversely affect the character of surroundings.

Policy OL1/4 states that the conversion and re-use of buildings in the Green Belt is not
inappropriate development and will be permitted providing that:

¢ it would not have a materially greater impact than the present use on openness;

e any extensions of re-used buildings and any associated uses of land surrounding the
building do not conflict with the openness of the green belt;

the buildings would be capable of conversion without major or complete reconstruction;
form, bulk and design would be in keeping with the surroundings;

suitable access and traffic can be accommodated;

necessary services can be provided;

no damage to habitats or protected species.

New dwelling - The proposed development would be located between two existing buildings
- the gatehouse and the wash house. As such, the proposed development would be an infill
plot. Therefore, the principle of the proposed development would be acceptable and would
comply with exception e) of paragraph 145 of the NPPF and Policies OL1/2 and OL1/3 of
the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Conversion - The proposed development involves the conversion of the existing gatehouse
into additional living accommodation. The proposed development would not involve any
extensions or changes to the existing openings. As such, the proposed form, bulk and
design would be as it is presently and in keeping with the surroundings. The existing
building would be capable of conversion. Therefore, the principle of the proposed
development would be acceptable and would be in accordance with third exception in
paragraph 146 of the NPPF and Policy OL1/4 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Principle (Residential) - The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) should be
treated as a material planning consideration and it emphasises the need for local planning
authorities to boost the supply of housing to meet local housing targets in both the short
and long term. The Framework maintains the emphasis on identifying a rolling five year
supply of deliverable housing land.

Bury's Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment sets out the latest housing supply
position, which is made up of sites that have an extant planning permission and sites that
have potential to obtain planning permission in the future. This shows that there are a
number of sites within the Borough with the potential to deliver a significant amount of
housing. However, not all of these sites will contribute to the five year supply calculations as
many sites will take longer than five years to come forward and be fully developed (e.g.
some large sites could take up to ten years to be completed). As such, latest monitoring
indicates that the Council is unable to demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing
land and this needs to be treated as a material factor when determining applications for
residential developments.

The National Planning Policy Framework also sets out the Housing Delivery Test, which is

PadRdNo 30



an assessment of net additional dwellings provided over the previous three years against
the homes required. Where the test indicates that the delivery of housing was substantially
below (less than 75%) of the housing requirement over the previous years, this needs to be
taken into account in the decision-taking process. The latest results published by the
Government show that Bury has a housing delivery test result of less than 75%, and
therefore, this needs to be treated as a material factor when determining applications for
residential development.

Therefore, in relation to the proposed dwelling, paragraph 11d) of the National Planning
Policy Framework states that where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the
policies which are most important for determining the application are out-of-date, planning
permission should be granted unless:

i. The application of policies in the Framework that protect areas, or assets of particular
importance, provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or

ii. Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits, when assessed against the policies in the Framework, taken as a whole.

Therefore, in this case the 'titled balance' applies and planning permission should be
granted unless the above points Para 11(d) i or ii apply.

Policy H1/2 states that the Council will have regard to various factors when assessing a
proposal for residential development, including whether the proposal is within the urban
area, the availability of infrastructure and the suitability of the site, with regard to amenity,
the nature of the local environment and the surrounding land uses.

The site is located in a rural area but forms part of the former nursing home and would be
previously developed land. There would be existing infrastructure in place to facilitate the
development. The principle of residential development on the site would be acceptable if

the development can comply with the relevant Green Belt policies and would comply with

Policy H1/2 of the Bury Unitary Development plan and the NPPF.

Design, layout and impact on heritage - The proposed dwellinghouse would be sited
within the curtilage of the former hospital site. The former hospital buildings are considered
to be a Non-Designated Heritage Assets (NDHASs). The site is not within a conservation
area.

Paragraph 203 of the NPPF requires that the effect of an application on the significance of
a non-designated heritage asset should be taken into account in determining the
application. In weighing applications that directly or indirectly affect non-designated heritage
assets, a balanced judgement will be required having regard to the scale of any harm or
loss and the significance of the heritage asset.

The above premises have been identified as non-designated heritage assets in accordance
with Annex 2 of the NPPF and are considered to be buildings, monuments, sites, places,
areas or landscapes identified as having a degree of significance meriting consideration in
planning decisions, because of their heritage interest. It includes designated heritage
assets and assets identified by the local planning authority (including local listing). The
'Good Practice Advice Note 2: Managing Significance in Decision-Taking' published by
Historic England (2015) clarifies non-designated assets as those "....that have been
identified in a Historic Environment Record, in a local plan, through local listing or during the
process of considering the application."

The proposal would not impact directly on the significance of the NDHAs but would be
within their setting, which if impacted negatively could cause harm to the significance of the
NDHAs.

The proposed dwelling would be constructed from red brick and natural slate and as such
would incorporate architectural reference to the existing buildings without challenging their
architectural integrity. The siting of the dwelling would provide spatial mitigation with regard

PR % 31



the sites' layout and form creating a visual separation. The proposal, whilst two storey
would have its first floor within the roof space ensuring its height is below that of the
existing buildings and therefore, would not dominate visually in terms of its height.

The alterations to the Gate House are very minor and would not represent a negative
impact within the site.

The Submitted heritage assessment concludes as follows:

"With respect to the level of harm in relation to this proposed development the heritage
assessment (HA) considers the buildings to be NDHA's and low/medium significance. The
significance is modulated between building to building due to their degree of originality and
alteration. The impact of the proposed development is generally upon the spatial layout of
the site and given the new development is adding to the layout with a similar form of
development and retaining and reusing the former gatehouse, the overall level of harm of
the works proposed are positive".

And

"The HA concludes that the crucial test contained within the NPPF is whether there is any
harm to a heritage asset that is outweighed by the public interest and benefits of a
proposal. It is concluded that the proposed works would result in a positive impact in that
new development, which is spatially correct and if constructed in similar materials to
existing forms, would enhance the site in addition to retaining the existing gatehouse. It will
put the building to a viable use without harming its modest aesthetic".

The Conservation Officer agrees with the heritage assessment and has no objections to the
proposed development. In conclusion, the proposed development, by virtue of its siting,
size, scale, mass and materials, would not cause harm to the setting of the former hospital
buildings and as such, would not cause any loss to their significance. Therefore, the
proposed development would be in accordance with Policy EN2 of the Bury Unitary
Development Plan and the NPPF.

Impact upon residential amenity - SPD6 provides guidance on aspect standards between
residential properties and would be relevant in this case.

There would be 19.2 metres from the utility room for the proposed dwelling to the
conservatory associated with Knowsley House, which would be in excess of the 13 metres
required.

There would be 12.2 metres from the blank gable of the proposed dwelling to the front
elevation of the Wash House. The bulk of the proposed dwelling would be set behind the
building line for the Wash House and as such, would not have an adverse impact upon the
amenity of the occupiers of the Wash House.

There would be between 12 and 20 metres from the rear elevation of the proposed dwelling
to the boundary with the site, which would be in excess of the 7 metres required.

The existing gatehouse would be converted into guest accommodation linked to the
proposed dwelling. The proposed gatehouse would utilise all the existing windows and
would be single storey in height. There would be 12.1 metres between the proposed
gatehouse and the Bungalow. Whilst this would be below the 13 metres required, there is a
2 metre high timber fence, which would prevent any overlooking or loss of privacy.

Therefore, the proposed development would not have an adverse impact upon the
residential amenity of the neighbouring properties.

Ecology - An ecological survey was submitted as part of the application and identified no
significant issues.

Bats - Bat surveys for the existing gatehouse were submitted. No bats were seen emerging

PagRéNo 32



from the building and therefore, the proposed development would not have a negative
impact upon the bats. GM Ecology Unit agrees with the findings of the report and has no
objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to bats.

Trees - The trees were also assessed as having bat roosting potential and the tree report is
recommending removal of two trees on arboricultural reasons. In addition, some trees and
shrubs would be removed as part of the proposed development. GM Ecology Unit has no
objections to the removal of the trees, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to trees
and nesting birds.

Protected species - The report discounted the presence of all other protected species and
GM Ecology Unit has no objections, subject to the inclusion of an informative relating to
badgers.

Invasive species - Species, such as rhododendron are classed as invasive species in the
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. Rhododendron has been identified on site, but may be
the ornamental variety. GM Ecology Unit has no objections, subject to the inclusion of a
informative relating to invasive species.

Landscaping - Section 174 of the NPPF 2021 states that the planning policies and
decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment. The
proposed soft landscaping proposals would be adequate to mitigate for the loss of low to
moderate grassland and scrub. GM Ecology Unit has no objections, subject to the inclusion
of a condition relating to landscaping.

Therefore, the proposed development would not have an adverse impact upon protected
species and would be in accordance with Policies EN6 and EN6/3 of the Bury Unitary
Development Plan and the NPPF.

Trees - An arboricultural survey has been submitted with the application and confirms that
two existing trees to the west of the access road would be retained and all the trees on the
perimeter of the site would be retained. 5 trees would have to be removed and these are
located to the west of the access road. The trees to be removed are category C, which is
poor quality. Given the retention of the two existing trees and those on the perimeter and
the planting of 5 additional trees, the proposed development would not harm the character
of the area. Therefore, the proposed development would be in accordance with Policy
ENB8/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Highways issues - The existing access to the site is from the head of Ainsworth Road. It
is an unadopted single wide road, but a well-maintained and surfaced lane. This is the only
access into the site and would be utilised by not just this plot but by other plots which may
come forward for development in the future.

For a development of a single plot, the standard of the access is considered to be
acceptable for the amount of traffic which would be generated, and that given the number
of plots which could come forward in the future, which is likely to be no more than 6 or 7,
the existing access would be of a standard to suitably serve the whole of the site. (If a
future development were to be larger scale, the access may need to be considered).

As the site is in a remote location and given there is only one access to the site, GMF&RS
have been consulted on the application.

The Fire Service are of the opinion that given the proposed site layout would create a
cul-de-sac in excess of 250 metres in length with the single point of entry to the proposed
development would being unsatisfactory as any obstruction along the single access road
could prevent emergency vehicles from entering the estate and restrict access to the
dwelling, increasing attendance time and posing a risk to public life.

A site layout which is considered unacceptable on the grounds of accessibility for fire
§ 33



appliances may become acceptable if the buildings are equipped with sprinkler systems
which are strongly recommended for buildings that are more than 250 meters from an
access road. Residential sprinkler systems are therefore recommended by GMFRS for this
development as they allow for a longer response time to emergency situations and may be
deemed suitable to overcome the site deficiencies of the proposal.

In addition, GMF&RS advise the proposal should meet the recognised Approved Document

requirements for Fire Service access:

e Vehicular access for a fire appliance to within 45m of all points within the dwellings

e The access road should be a minimum width of 4.5m and capable of carrying 12.5
tonnes

¢ If the access road is more than 20m long a turning circle, hammerhead, or other turning
point for fire appliances will be required

e There should be a suitable fire hydrant within 165m of the furthest dwelling.

The Traffic Section has no objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to
construction traffic management plan, car parking, turning facilities and sprinklers.
Therefore, the proposed development would be in accordance with Policies EN1/2, H2/1,
H2/2 and HT6/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

Parking - SPD11 states that the maximum parking standards for a 5 bedroom dwelling is 3
spaces per dwelling.

The proposed development would provide 4 parking spaces - 3 by the proposed dwelling
and 1 space next to the proposed converted gatehouse for use by guests/visitors. As such,
the proposed development would provide the required number of spaces and would be in
accordance with Policy HT2/4 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and SPD11.

Response to objectors

e The issues relating to development within the Green Belt, loss of privacy, loss of light,
design and layout have been addressed in the report above.

e The loss of a view is not a material planning consideration and cannot be taken into
consideration.

¢ No existing drainage is available on this site for foul sewage. The application states
otherwise which is incorrect. Surely this must be addressed prior to any kind of approval
being granted. Also, the boundary fencing must be of stockproof construction

Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015

The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify
various solutions during pre-application discussions to ensure that the proposal comprised
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions
Conditions/ Reasons
1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the
date of this permission.

Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act
1990.

PagR &R0 34



This decision relates to drawings numbered 21/1242/100, TRI-3419-01,
TRI-3419-02, TRI-3419-03, TRI-3419-04, 21/1242/101A, 21/1242/200E,
21/1242/202A, 21/1242/203A, 21/1242/204, 21/1242/205A, 21/1242/206A,
879A-10A and the development shall not be carried out except in accordance with
the drawings hereby approved.

Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed.

Details/Samples of the (materials/bricks) to be used in the external elevations,
together with details of their manufacturer, type/colour and size, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the
development is commenced. Only the approved materials/bricks shall be used for
the construction of the development.

Reason. No material samples have been submitted and are required in the
interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory development pursuant to
UDP Policy EN1/1 Visual Amenity.

No development shall commence unless and until:-

e A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority;

¢ Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall
be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority;

¢ Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed
Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason. The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination and

subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory development

of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas and the wider
environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework Section 15 -

Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.

Following the provisions of Condition 4 of this planning permission, where
remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and

A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
development being brought into use.

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

If the works to the Gatehouse do not commence before 30th April 2023, the
building must be reassessed for bat roosting potential and the associated survey
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before any
demolition works are carried out. The demolition shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details.

Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species
pursuant to policies EN6 — Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 —
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Section
11 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

The removal of the tree called Tree 1 has the potential to cause harm to bats as
identified in the Ecological Survey and Assessment - ERAP Ltd ref. 2021-117. If
removal is required, the works must be carried out in accordance with Method

PR &b 35



10.

11.

12.

Statement outline in Section 5.5.5 of the Ecological Survey and Assessment -
ERAP Ltd ref. 2021-117

Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species
pursuant to policies EN6 — Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 —
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Section
11 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

No works to trees or shrubs shall occur between the 1st March and 31st August in
any year unless a detailed bird nest survey by a suitably experienced ecologist
has been carried out immediately prior to clearance.

Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species
pursuant to policies EN6 - Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 -
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and National
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment.

The landscaping scheme hereby approved shall be implemented to the written
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority not later than 12 months from the date
the building(s) is first occupied. Any trees or shrubs removed, dying or becoming
severely damaged or becoming seriously diseased within 5 years of planting shall
be replaced by trees or shrubs of a similar size and species to those originally
required to be planted to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of
visual amenity pursuant to Policy EN8/2 — Woodland and Tree Planting of the
Bury Unitary Development Plan.

All trees to be retained on site shall be protected in accordance with BS
5837:2012 "Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction". The
development shall not commence unless and until the measures required by the
British Standard are implemented and all measures required shall remain in situ
until the development has been completed.

Reason. To avoid the loss of trees which are of amenity value to the area
pursuant to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2 — Woodland
and Tree Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.

No development shall commence unless and until surface water drainage
proposals have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme should be in accordance with the submitted Surface Water
Sustainable Drainage Assessment and must be based on the hierarchy of
drainage options in the National Planning Practice Guidance and be designed in
accordance with the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage
Systems (March 2015). This must include assessment of potential SuDS options
for surface water drainage with appropriate calculations and test results to support
the chosen solution. Details of proposed maintenance arrangements should also
be provided. The approved scheme only shall be implemented prior to first
occupation and thereafter maintained.

Reason. The current application contains insufficient information regarding the
proposed drainage scheme to fully assess the impact. To promote sustainable
development and reduce flood risk pursuant to Unitary Development Plan Policies
EN5/1- New Development and Flood Risk , EN7/3 - Water Pollution and EN7/5 -
Waste Water Management and chapter 14 - Meeting the challenge of climate
change, flooding and coastal change of the NPPF.

No development shall commence unless and until a 'Construction Traffic
Management Plan' (CTMP), has been submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority and shall confirm/provide the following:

e Photographic dilapidation survey of the unadopted section of Knowsley Road
classified as Public Footpath No.42, Christ Church, Radcliffe that serves the

PadR8No 36



site in the event that subsequent remedial works are required following
construction of the development;
Proposed site hoardings and gates positions (if proposed);

e Hours of operation, confirmation of delivery & construction vehicle sizes that
can be accommodated on the residential estate roads and Public Right of Way
leading to the site and number of vehicle movements;

e Parking on site of operatives' vehicles together with storage on site of
demolition/construction materials, including any requisite phasing of the
development to accommodate this;

e Measures to ensure that all mud and other loose materials are not spread onto
the adjacent Public Right of Way and adopted highways as a result of the
groundworks operations or carried on the wheels and chassis of any vehicles
leaving the site and measures to minimise dust nuisance caused by the
operations.

The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the demolition/construction
period and the measures shall be retained and facilities used for the intended
purpose for the duration of the demolition and construction periods. The areas
identified shall not be used for any other purposes other than the turning/parking
of vehicles and storage of demolition/construction materials.

Reason. Information not submitted at application stage. To mitigate the impact of
the construction traffic generated by the proposed development on the adjacent
residential streets, and ensure adequate off street car parking provision and
materials storage arrangements for the duration of the construction period and
that the adopted highways are kept free of deposited material from the ground
works operations, in the interests of highway safety pursuant to Bury Unitary
Development Plan Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and HT6/2 -
Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict.

13.  Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, a sprinkler/misting
system to meet the requirements of BS 9251:2014 or other subsequent standard
that meets the requirements of Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue Service and
deemed suitable to overcome the site's emergency access deficiencies, shall be
installed in the dwelling hereby approved and shall thereafter be maintained at all
times.

Reason. In the interests of fire safety and to ensure the safe and satisfactory
development of the site and for its future occupiers pursuant to Bury Unitary
Development Plan Policies H1/2 - Further Housing Development, H2/2 - The
Layout of New Residential Development and EN1/2 - Townscape and Built
Design.

14.  The car parking and turning facilities indicated on the approved plans shall be
surfaced and made available for use prior to first occupation of the dwelling
hereby approved and thereafter maintained available for use at all times.
Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of
road safety pursuant to Policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development of the
Bury Unitary Development Plan.

For further information on the application please contact Helen Leach on 0161 253 5322

PR 8% 37



Viewpoints

Path (um)

e ————— =

o=

g

PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN

N
APP. NO 68661 / D
4+ ST
ADDRESS: Ainsworth Nursing Home, /

Knowsley Road 8 COUNCIL

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Page 87



68661

Photo 1

Photo 2

Page 88



68661

Photo 3

Photo 4

Page 89



68661

Photo 5

2
:

2161 764 4373

Photo 6

Page 90



ERECTION OF SINGLE DWELLING AND ASSOCIATED ACCESS, PARKING AND LANDSCAPING, PROVISION OF A LANDSCAPE
BUFFER, AND REFURBISHMENT OF THE GATE HOUSE WITHIN THE CURTILAGE OF THE FORMER AINSWORTH NURSING HOME~

THE WASH HOUSE
(CONSENT REF; 65412)

Roo Protecton Area
(RPA) 10 ree group G4
(referto tree survey). i

Sustainable urban drainage system
comprising surface water discharge ffom
ach dwelling to network of fiter drains.
Catchpits nstalled to clear sediment,

Line of canopy to ree group.
G refer to tree survey).

Y New nativehedge to be:
planted to forth boundary.

b
Root Protecton Area -
(RPA) o res group G1

(refer to ree survey)

Withn tree Root Protection Areas access to be
formed with Cellweb TRP cellular confinement
‘system (cross hatched area) with aggregate fil
‘and pemneable bonded gravel wearing course.

Root Protection Area
(RPA) totree group G4
(refer to tree survey)

Plot boundary formed
with 1.2m high tmber
5 post and rail fence. J N

s !,
[7catenpit secA

GARDEN |

troe group G
| (referto
|

5
suvey)

Line of canopy to ree group.
G4 (refer to ree survey).

sustanatle |
Urban Drainage |
system (SUDs) |

Existing dlapidated
fencing replaced wi
high imber post and rail fence.

Plot boundary formed
with 1.2m high imber
post and rail fence.

Boundary to landscape.
bufr formed with 1.2m high
timber post and rai fence.

Root Protecton Area
(RPA) totres group G4
(refer to ree survey).

Landscaping

Line of canopy to ree group.
G refer to ree suvey)

Curtilage of Ainsworth
Nursing Home.

Root Protection Area
(RPA) totres group G2
(refer to tree survey)

Line of canopy to ree group.

Overhead pover Ines.
power G3 (refer totree survey).

Root Protecton Area
(RPA) totree group G2
(refer to ree survey).

Line of canopy to ree group.
G2 refer to ree survey).

PROPOSED SITE LAYOUT (1:200)

en g
7
H

KNOWSLEY HOUSE

(CONSENT REF; 66142)

THE BUNGALOW
(CONSENT REF; 65626)

k
H E

P

H F
THEHAVEN 7

(CONSENT REF; 66836)

=

0

Aty

KEY TO EXISTING & PROPOSED LEVELS:

+70.420 Existing levels from topographical survey.

®70.480 Proposed design level.

Levels relate to national datum
(OSGB3S(15) using GNSS data.
ELEV: 188517m

KEY TO EXTERNAL BOUNDARIES & EQUIPMENT

Rear garden to dwelling to have an area of amenity grass, and a patio.
Perimeter paths & patios to dwelling to be resin bound gravel (golden/buft
colour). Refer to landscaping design for hard & soft landscaping details.

Dwelling to have three parking spaces. Drives and parking areas to be
surfaced with permeable resin bound gravel.

Bin storage area enclosed within close boarded timber screen fence -
1.6metres high (separate containers for general waste, plastic bottis, glass &
paper, & garden waste).

IRIR]R]
51 St recyit
Duweling to be provided with a single Mode 3 compliant Electric Vehicle
Charging Point (EVCP) to be installed to the extaral wall of dwelling directly
adjacent to the parking spaces. The specification for the EVCP's are to be:
Rolek Wallpod:EV Type 2 Mode 3 charging socket.

4\% Electic Venide

&P Charging Point

Duweling to be provided with a cycle store (capable of accommodating two
cycles). To be metal storage unitfor 2 bikes (colour - grey) by Asgard of
similar & approved, galvanised steel, 3-point locking system, unft is securely
bolted to the ground. Width: S0cm, depth 190cm, height: 120cm.

Oycle
store

EXTERNAL LIGHTING SPECIFICATION
To minimise indirect impacts from ighting it s proposed that artficial lighting
is only directed where necessary for safe use of amenity areas. None of the
external lighting installed will be greater than 1,800 lumens (15 Watts) and
only LED lights will be installed (they do not emit on the UV spectrum, are
more easily controllable in terms of direction/spill and can be turned on and
offinstantly). Lighting to be ftted as low as practical to extemal walls, and
fixed in a steep downviard angle with the lighting housing further helping to
directlight below the horizontal plane.

W.M.D.L. - Wall Mounted Down Light

iDL
/ Use Saxby Odyssey W - wall down lights or similar (630 lumens).

wmBL  WM.B.L. - Wall Mounted Bulknead Light
=" Use Portchester Hood 15W - LED Bulkhead or similar (1,782 lumens).
g ELB.-Extenal Lighting Bollard
Use Westminster 10W - LED bollard or similar (1,320 lumens).
TREE WORKS/LANDSCAPING
Refer to tree survey and arboricultural method statement for details of existing
trees to be retained, trees to be felled (category U trees only).

Refer to landscaping design for details of compensatory tree planting, and
soft landscape planting.

X Category U tree - fell
Within tree Root Protection Areas drives to be
L formed vith Cellweb TRP cellular confinement
~~—— system (cross hatched area) with aggregate fill
and resin bound gravel wearing course.

Line of canopy to ree group
o <(re!er totree suvey).

Drive

Category A& B
roes - retained

| coegay

k Utree-fell

Root Protection Area
(RPA) totree group
(referto ree survey).

New landscape planiing
(refer tolandscaping design)

O]

fence PR 1.2m Plot boundary formed with 1.2m

high timber post and railfence.

A[31.08.21 [IPE]External fighting details added to plan, and section
lines added to plat 1.
B/15.02.22 [IPE|Proposal re-designed to show a single dwelling.
C|21.03.22 [IPE|Proposed single dwelling re~sited 4metres to the
north, and 2metres to the eost
D|20.04.22 4PE[Tree Root Protection Areas to T1 and T6 updated
following confirmation received from Arboriculturist.
E|21.06.22 4PE[Tree Root Protection Areas updated following
odditional site visit and survey data provided by
Arboriculturist (site visit June 2022).

Amendments
Title

ERECTION OF ONE DWELLING AND ASSOCIATED ACCESS,
PARKING AND LANDSCAPING, PROVISION OF LANDSCAPE
BUFFER, AND REFURBISHMENT OF THE GATE HOUSE WITHIN
THE CURTILAGE OF THE FORMER AINSWORTH NURSING HOME,
KNOWSLEY ROAD, AINSWORTH, BURY~

[Ctient
PEL ELECTRICAL LTD

Dug. No.
21/1242/200E — PROPOSED SITE LAYOUT
Date Plot Scale rawn by [Status
07.06.2021 A1@1:200 JPE ISSUE
JPE CONSULTANCY LIMITED

ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN & PLANNING
5 Woodend Drive, Stabbridge, Cheshirs, SK15 257
Telophons 07875 627 988 _jim@jpsconsuttoncy.co.uk




Dwelling to have a sprinkler system installed
(designed to BS9251), and will meet the
requirements of Approved Document B of
the Building Regulations for provision of
access for the Fire Service.

sec C sec C
11.025m - 4.05m
sec B
sgoh ]
— L_I\—; |
B S E ) ] '
DINING ROOM l: :‘
I R | BED 3 l: %
8.325 ": 265 J\Wﬁ BED 2/”% MASTER BED [ ]|
. m .oom | |
LIVING ROOM - ] —— lqj—
UTILITY
. GALLERY EN—SUITE
- HOME T
ENTRANCE
OFFICE I () @]
;JU 7 t HALL BED S mfla
& , 2
@ - el ' — — :
© ﬁ
0.675m
n EV.CP. — — secA — = secA
i 4.5m L secB secB
secC Dwelling to be provided with a single Mode 3 secC
compliant Electric Vehicle Charging Point (EVCP .
PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN (1:100) compliant Electric Vehicle Charging Paint ( dweﬂmg PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN (1:100)

directly adjacent to the parking spaces. The

specification for the EVCP’s are to be; Rolek

Wallpod:EV Type 2 Mode 3 charging socket.

Notes Notes Amendments Project
A|01.07.22 [JPE|HOUSE DESIGN 'HANDED' TO AMENDED SITING OF Title
SINGLE DWELLING ERECTION OF A DWELLING AND ASSOCIATED ACCESS, PARKING

AND LANDSCAPING, PROVISION OF LANDSCAPE BUFFER, AND
REFURBISHMENT OF THE GATE HOUSE WITHIN THE CURTILAGE
OF THE FORMER AINSWORTH NURSING HOME, KNOWSLEY
ROAD, AINSWORTH, BURY~

Client
PEL ELECTRICAL LTD
Dwg. No.
21/1242/202A — PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS
Date Plot Scale Drawn by Status
07.06.2021 A3@1:100 JPE PLANNING

JPE CONSULTANCY LIMITED
ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN & PLANNING

9 Woodend Drive, Stalybridge, Cheshire. SK15 2SF
Telephone 07875 627 988 jim@jpeconsultancy.co.uk




Pitched and hipped
roofs to be clad > _
with natural slates.

Aluminium, circular

section gutters and ~—

rainwater pipes (black). = A — ‘M
Vertical emphasis = — :” ‘ — 1
to windows. = — ——
1= —
Brick detailing to 4.75m i —
window heads to match o L 111111 — AN ERR AR
existing buildings. | — [ ] E— I
= B = — &
[T T 1 = — —
Red brick facing to — H. — |
match existing buildings. =
P —————— —_—— e — | —
PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION (1:100)
o)
g Ny
T i
) T~ 3 Z
(o] ~ |-
w
5.9m T4
Single storey height E —— T ITT T ———| T
to rear elevation. =\ N — ‘ ‘ (1N N\ — ‘
= \ — — DY | —
= — \ D — — | I \ \||—=3
o / / = — / 4] — T —]
— 7 / s / —]
o 14 / 1 / ] =
B S oy | g gy Sy | g ————— e =

PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION (1:100)

1%

Single storey height

to rear elevation.

[T

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION (1:100)

Two storey front elevation

facing existing two storey

Administration Building.

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION (1:100)

Notes

Notes

b

Project

KEY DESIGN PRINCIPLES;

Key design principles identified for inclusion in the final design
include:

- New dwelling sited close to existing access and grouping of
buildings;
Existing mature trees and dense vegetation retained to south
and west boundaries;
Landscape buffer incorporated to south and west boundaries;
Small building footprint in relation to plot area;
Existing mature trees retained to frontage of new dwelling.
Supplementary landscape planting to be provided;
Materials to match those to existing buildings;
Building form to match existing structures with pitched roofs
reducing down to single storey height at rear;
Varying height of roofs similar to form of existing buildings.

DESIGN/MATERIALS REFERENCE ;

red brick facings to elevations
detailing to elevations at heads & sills
variation to height and scale of roofs
hipped roofs with feature dormers
vertical emphasis to windows

slate roof

aluminium rainwater goods (black)

000080

arched door surround (Gate House & Administration Block)

>

HOUSE DESIGN 'HANDED' TO AMENDED SITING OF
SINGLE DWELLING

Title
ERECTION OF A DWELLING AND ASSOCIATED ACCESS, PARKING
AND LANDSCAPING, PROVISION OF LANDSCAPE BUFFER, AND
REFURBISHMENT OF THE GATE HOUSE WITHIN THE CURTILAGE
OF THE FORMER AINSWORTH NURSING HOME, KNOWSLEY
ROAD, AINSWORTH, BURY~

Client
PEL ELECTRICAL LTD
Dwg. No.
21/1242/203A — PROPOSED ELEVATIONS
Date Plot Scale Drawn by Status
07.06.2021 A3@1:100 JPE PLANNING

JPE CONSULTANCY LIMITED
ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN & PLANNING

9 Woodend Drive, Stalybridge, Cheshire. SK15 2SF
Telephone 07875 627 988 jim@jpeconsultancy.co.uk




CHANGE OF USE AND REFURBISHMENT OF GATE HOUSE TO GUEST AC

i
i

I

Al E

]
]

COMMODATION ANCILLARY TO PLOT 1~

PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION (1:100)

]
]

PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION (1:100)

]

A

[T
|s==
‘I’:’:“:‘

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION (1:100)

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION (1:100)

EXISTING FRONT ELEVATION (1:100)

4Nl

_
GATE HOUSE

EXISTING LAYOUT PLAN (1:100)

EXISTING REAR ELEVATION (1:100)

BATHROOM
KITCHEN
BEDROOM
LIVING ROOM
1]
GATE HOUSE

PROPOSED LAYOUT PLAN (1:100)

EXISTING SIDE ELEVATION (1:100)

EXISTING SIDE ELEVATION (1:100)

mendments

Project

Title
ERECTION OF TWO DWELLINGS AND ASSOCIATED ACCESS,
PARKING AND LANDSCAPING, PROVISION OF LANDSCAPE
BUFFER, AND REFURBISHMENT OF THE GATE HOUSE WITHIN
THE CURTILAGE OF THE FORMER AINSWORTH NURSING HOME,
KNOWSLEY ROAD, AINSWORTH, BURY~

Client
PEL ELECTRICAL LTD
Dwg. No.
21/1242/204 — GATE HOUSE — PLANS AND ELEVATIONS
Date Plot Scale Drawn by Status
07.06.2021 A3@1:100 JPE PLANNING
JPE CONSULTANCY LIMITED

ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN & PLANNING
9 Woodend Drive, Stalybridge, Cheshire. SK15 2SF
Telephone 07875 627 988 jim@jpeconsultancy.co.uk




ERECTION OF A DWELLING AND ASSOCIATED ACCESS, PARKING AND LANDSCAPING, PROVISION OF A LANDSCAPE BUFFER,
AND REFURBISHMENT OF THE GATE HOUSE WITHIN THE CURTILAGE OF THE FORMER AINSWORTH NURSING HOME~

TREE GROUP G1
GENERAL HEIGHT OF
TREE GROUP = 23.20m

TREE GROUP G4
GENERAL HEIGHT OF
TREE GROUP = 18.20m

ADMINISTRATION BLOCK;
THRESHOLD LEVEL = 159.74m
RIDGE LEVEL = 168.97m
HEIGHT = 9.23m

PAVILION BLOCK;
THRESHOLD LEVEL = 159.25m
RIDGE LEVEL = 166.43m
HEIGHT = 7.18m

PROPOSED DWELLING
FINISHED FLOOR LEVEL = 160.00m
RIDGE HEIGHT = 166.80m
PROPOSED HEIGHT = 6.8m
‘ HE EE T
> I I
1.2m HIGH POST & & 4 E EE EE E ‘ L
RAIL FENCE AT & Loke
SITE BOUNDARY & = 1 — — — 1t — = —
BUFFE R SPACE- ELE & LAN SITE BUILL BUILL ILION
STREET SCENE THROUGH PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT (1:200)
T
Q
Q
D
(]
(631
Notes Notes Amendments Project
[A]01.07.22 | JPE[STREETSGENE AMENDED TO SHOW AMENDED SITING OF Title

SINGLE DWELLING,

ERECTION OF A DWELLING AND ASSOCIATED ACCESS, PARKING
AND LANDSCAPING, PROVISION OF LANDSCAPE BUFFER, AND
REFURBISHMENT OF THE GATE HOUSE WITHIN THE CURTILAGE
OF THE FORMER AINSWORTH NURSING HOME, KNOWSLEY
ROAD, AINSWORTH, BURY~

(Client
PEL ELECTRICAL LTD
Dwyg. No.
21/1242/205A — STREET SCENE
Date Plot Scale [Drawn by ‘Smtus
07.06.2021 A1@1:200 JPE PLANNING
JPE CONSULTANCY LIMITED

ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN & PLANNING
9 Woodend Drive, Stalybridge, Cheshire. SK15 25F
Telephone 07875 627 988 jm@jpeconsultancy.co.uk




EROIENTALS AN RANDALL
proshpemie THORP &,
-

Beehive Lofts, Beehive Mill Jersey Street, Manchester, M4 6G
0161 228 7721 mail uk

Precedent Planting Images LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

Carpinus betulus Sorbus aucuparia ‘Cardinal Royal “Compactus’

“Compactum’

KEY:

-
Proposed shade tolerant lawn mix (Emorsgate EG23)
4 woodland wildflower mix (Emoresgate EH1)
nd e bl paning (Seebet Snowereps and Wid Garlc)

@ Proposed habitat log ple (using trees felled on site)

Proposed planting areas (sha tolerant mix of shrubs,
perennials and grasses) See planting schedule for details

Landscape Proposals - General Arrangement 1:200

Sl 1200

Mixed Native Hedge:
Cmon  40%

North

e 2. | Proposed tree planting
1No. A lam (MS] o / (see planting schedule and plan annotation for key tree details)

:  planting
1No.Cke o 50% Yew), -final
1No. A lam (M5) Hedge. Ch
[ e e ey s
P s st remses e syt

[ ] osnemom oo oo

Proposed hedge planting
(see planting schedule and plan annotation for details)

1No. Clae Ps'

Woodland wildflower mix . Galanths nivalis | Mived Native Hed posed resin-bound areas
1 Mined Nate Hedge {ooen/ i coow)
Plant Schedule / " Driveway - Cellweb TRP cellular (or similar) confinement
s ; i ol
T ) oo tame gravel wearing course
= = El
| Proposed oak gateposts to mark property entrance
=T
\ =5
Comon
W [van Ewrenw (G Aol Evres
SawtR 3 Rovan CarinaiRopr &
U ) imbersite P Vi L Landscape Buffer/ Wildlife Corri
=00y Gommon fiame G D om [Heightem [ ReotZons Iw o fencing replaced with 1.2m < A 1o cke /L) The buffer willinclude the following:
Coepng Dogunod I Sewra shoom 130 igh ti i s : a . 8
e e £ L ichioiiermiivdvig e 1o, A am [MS} e ases o praides to the woodland ufer o slow maenance
s b3 i od Wi ey 1t o ——— —- ~ © Native et hecgerow (Hawthorn, hacel, Holly and prvet)
pacius i == .
o unun%ﬁ«cnaa i oo Red Cascade % T T
m o o y V_‘ Holl s sl and Yew (Taxss baceats) 25 (or eqvalent
Lz - - root-balled) specimens to provide screening
G sauthers prooked Crecarbery. 5200 Sewerl shows 10 / o L ool
N T ) [z ) / 1o Alam thatwill bloom In spring and eary summer
D) G z Baeched 63 [ « Native bulb planting (Bluebels, Snowdrops and Wild Garlic)
s fexquioum Common Holly 080 10| Losdorvithlsivls ( « Creation of dead wood habitat piles for colonisation by Invertebrates, fungi,
Lot Concer itca g Soxorepuckis EX) £ By s ! > St small marmals mcluding hedgehogs
Wi | P U T SO | e o Caren wa0 [ [samrone ety
Private Garden:
Mxm W' vanonia xmeda Wasr sun Maona W Sun XIS sy 201k Inclusion of native species, and species known to be of value for the
oV = £ Soratahoon T attraction of wildife
e 7 s5bia « Inclusion of trees which support blossom and fruit which willattract insects
1ok Faw oo Stmmi Yo Groor sy 3k . understorey
- e e | attraction of invertebrates including bumblebees and butterfles
Vo B Vounam Owar « Inclusion e
Vop Compacum” Gusisr Rose Compcu yabis icbrates and d birck
ymiG7 oo Cormude o T shoon 35 J—
P + Please refer
S T Common Name et o [Foghten | RootZons | Soncicator existing site trees
n s ot Sears rauc £ Fuot N
chamit malhs Cadys e £ Fulpot
onoris obart onars Jobet o oot
ek Font ok ront £ Fupot
Epmadum xrbrum Red Saranvort 2 Futpot
o Satan Cranessil A’ £ Futpor
Forscarn sfins Superos” = N oot
Finge Cupa p ot
Tarl couia Foam Fover £ oot
[Fobrov [ o vame Gommon vame TG o [Foghten | Reotzons | soreicaor —]
Co¥ [Cumomimaras Ewod npanese Sodoe Ewrgold £ Futpot |
Him £ oot .
Hodging

[ e [Eommonans e T (e T e—
[ee Carpnun boon [Commen Homzeam T o125 [ 72 Trarwpin-seed aives

e e nsge
TCommen Rame ek | R Tk
Gommn Hawborm we o Tarspart-sesd wasd @ ¢ o
uz Transplant - seed raied, branched. 3. »
EoRIb Jorks. ad Overhead power line: la o G2 g
XY s & .
wa [ Sarched Tbrn £ .
[Grass ines ras Wixes GENERAL LANDSCAPE SPECIFICATION NOTES:
shade 2)€62 General notes on planting mixes
56 mx Botanica name. Commontt
ol [t B {max. 5no. t, the front of bed: to footpaths or boricultural g 198 ‘with CPSE guidelines and planted in accordance with BS 4428. Hedge plants to be pit planted
40% Festuca rubra [Slender-creeping Red-fescue at the entrance/ to the side. nipm erties. in double staggered rows 300mm apart at 450mm centres. Well water plants immediately
|Ramsons 32% |Festuca rubra ssp. Commutata |Chewing's Fescue. *  Woody shrubs to be planted in small groups (max. Snc.) at 3 plants per m* 4.0 TREE PLANTING: All trees to be in accordance with BS 3936 / 4043. Trees to be planted in after planting and prior to spreading of mulch. Planted areas to be covered with 75mm depth
1 8% [Poa nemoralis [smooth stalked grass + Large shrubs should notbe posiioned i font o ground floorwindows or immedtately accordance with BS 8545: 2014 and securely staked and tied in pits 1000 x 1000 x 750mm  mulch and kept weed free. Where necessary plants to be protected from rabbits with
1 Rough Crervl % |poa trvats adacent to ratviews and/ sackiled with <opsoil mied with A0L of tree planing compost, ensuring tree pit are a rabbit fence and /or indivdual rabbic mesh guarcs securely siaked:
Foxglove minimum of 75mm deeper anc 150mm wider than the tree oots. Base of ot to be broken
" " . ; ) up to a depth of 200mm. Root balls to be encircled by Root Rain Metro or similar irgigation 7.0 TURFING: Grass turf areas to be Rolawn Medallion® Turf or similar approved, laid in
: 0 SO Susmrade | subial o be prenared i sccordance wih B 4428 mnd scanfed o! ipe. Well water after olancing, The base of trees to planted i grass areas are o be covered accordance with BS4428. Topsol 1o be rototveted and levelled s required and any debris or . . - -
ol s ot vens oAb v AR Y A with 75mm depth bark mulch to 1.0 metre diameter and kept weed free. stones greste than 30mmp dameer remeved. Preturng fertiser o be sopled in Nationwide Building & Civils Ltd
‘Muttipurpose Grade' with m\mmumsollwgam( ‘matter contents 1% greater than the minimal accordance with manufacturers instructions. Turf to be leid from planks with broken joints
|Wood Avens alue o oved). Imported topsoil {and ' ' if requested) is o be laborator All standard trees (8-10cm girth) and above to be staked. Extra heavy standard trees (14-16cm well butted up. Well water after laying to avoid shrinkage.
tested to 853852: 2007 and amelorated 3 roquirad t9 mest the required i sottom of o1 before plantng, Consoldate. materal round stake and firm suficintly © 5.0 SEEDING: rass reas to be seeded n accordance with BS 4428, To be seeded during . . .
1504 prunella voigaris Seifheal et Table o 893862 2007 speciceon, arass arees o be 2 i depth of Srevent majement of the rootbal. Cut off stakes <o approx ately 600 mm above rounc March, Apri or September. Tapsoi o be rotatvated and levelled as required and any debris Residential dwellings at former
SRR e oo 150 b b 300 deptnond anspnts 00 ceoi Ay e gﬂ seouinio level Adjustable tes to be sed o atach trees to stakes. Where necessary trees o b or stones grester thin 20mm B diameter removed. Pre.seed fertiser o be appied n
% i livation. Incorporz it y-staked individua! rabbit uards. Trees w re wiing i i
0.20%silne flos-cuculi - (1ychnis flos-cucul)|Ragged Robin Sl gt oo o614 0 o e vy ncred oo ppotected o rabits b ih securesteted vicue) rabit mesh guarcs Trees within ereas ghtly soving nursing home, Ainsworth
1.00%[Teucrium scorodon I Wood sage N.B Proposed services in landscape areas should be installed as a minimum below the e oublicopen soace to be fited wih strimmer guards.
Isiow growing grasses (80%): vsquwed ‘topsoil depths and cleariy identfied in accordance with service / utility reguirements. Where proposed tree locations confiict with services, trees are to be relocated in accordance 90 WILDFLOWER SEEDING; grass areas to be seeded In accordance with BS 4428 during
ith the " d: bj i local auth I March, April or September. Unimproved topsoil to be imported, rotovated and levelled if Landscape Proposals
10K1Agrostis capillaris | Comman Bent with the appropriate utiltes guidance notes subject to client / local authority approva required and any debris o stones greater than 20mm diameter removed. Lightly rake areas. P P
e et ] 2.0 BUSTING TREES: Where trees are to be retained they should be subect o a ful Proprietary oot barrier Green ea’, Aefoot or similar to be installd i accordance with eauired and any dersor stones greater than 20mm dlame gty
arboricultural inspection to assess condition and safety. Retained trees shall be protected st here relc 3fter sowing. Refer to schecules for seec @s 2nd sowing rates.
from damage by erection of 2.3m weldmesh fencing on a scaffold framework in accordance: | Drwg No: 879A-10A Date: 08.06.22
o 85 5837.2005 Figure 2. These barrersshallbe maintained i positon and n good conction 5.0/SHRUB & HERBACEOUS PLANTING: Plants o be i sccordance vith B5 3936 and handied in 100 SULS PLANTING:each bul (o be lanted at  depth ofappraitaely wice s it Drawnby: Checker-IF
until works are complete. Fencing to be located in accordance with Teble 2. at a raius of 12 accordance with CPSE guidelines and planted in accordance with BS 4428. All shrubs to have a contec (i el broken o st
28%|Festuca rubra [Slender-creeping Red-fescue. times the stem diameter (single stem trees) or 10 times the basal diameter (trees with more minimum of three breaks. Well water plants immediately after planting and orior to spreading s'w"d fevel. In existing s's“eﬂ areas scatter bulbs wi efﬂ ev al EN""SW © Wum Revby:Ls Rev checker:
12%[Poa nemoralis [Slender-creeping Red-fescue. of mulch. Planting areas to be covered with 75mm depth bark mulch and kept weed free. 2nd replaced. Bulbs should be firm and entire, not dried out; and free from pests, diseases

then one stem arlsing below 1.5m above ground level] refer to Cleuse 5.2.2. Further
o be tak: 94,

end fungus.

QM Status: Checked Product Status: Issue
£ 1:200_@_A1




REPORT FOR NOTING

Agenda It(@@[ﬁy

COUNCIL

Agenda
Item 5

DECISION OF:

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE

DATE:

8 November 2022

SUBJECT:

DELEGATED DECISIONS

REPORT FROM:

HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

CONTACT OFFICER:

DAVID MARNO

TYPE OF DECISION:

COUNCIL

FREEDOM OF This paper is within the public domain
INFORMATION/STATUS:
SUMMARY: The report lists:

Recent delegated planning decisions since the last PCC
OPTIONS & The Committee is recommended to the note the report

RECOMMENDED OPTION

and appendices

IMPLICATIONS:

Corporate Aims/Policy

Do the proposals accord with the Policy

Framework: Framework? Yes
Statement by the S151 Officer:
Financial Implications and Risk Executive Director of Resources to advise

Considerations:

regarding risk management

Statement by Executive Director N/A

of Resources:

Equality/Diversity implications: No

Considered by Monitoring Officer: | N/A

Wards Affected:

All listed

Scrutiny Interest:

N/A
FPage 97




TRACKING/PROCESS DIRECTOR:

Chief Executive/ Executive Ward Members Partners
Strategic Leadership Member/Chair
Team
Scrutiny Committee Committee Council

1.0 BACKGROUND

This is a monthly report to the Planning Control Committee of the delegated planning
decisions made by the officers of the Council.

2.0 CONCLUSION

That the item be noted.

List of Background Papers:-None

Contact Details:-

David Marno, Head of Development Management

Planning Services, Department for Resources and Regulation
3 Knowsley Place

Bury BL9 OEJ]

Tel: 0161 253 5291
Email: d.marno@bury.gov.uk

Page 98




Planning applications decided using Delegated Powers B
Between 03/10/2022 and 30/10/2022 “"’D E

Ward: Bury East

Application No.: 68398 App- Type: FUL 17/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. Coachmans Corner, 10 Bridge Hall Drive, Bury, BL9 7NX
Location:
Proposal: Replacement of existing 2m high fence with a 2.5m high timber fence on side boundary
Application No.: 68453 App. Type: FUL 06/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
Lo Site of Former Peel Health Centre, Market Street / Angouleme Way, Bury, BL9 OEQ
Location:
Proposal: Variation of conditions 2 and 3 following approval of planning permission ref. 66978 -
Amendments to approved landscaping, lighting details and external finishing materials
Application No.: 68598 App.- Type: FUL 18/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 31 Ash Street, Bury, BL9 7BT
Location:
Proposal:  Single storey extension at side/rear
Application No.: 68712 App- Type: FUL 17/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 64 Shepherd Street, Bury, BL9 ORT
Location:
Proposal: Part single/Part two storey rear extension
Application No.: 68819 App. Type: TEL 12/10/2022 Prior Approval Required and Refused
. Corner of Jubilee Way & Tenters Street, Bury, BL9 OAL
Location:
Proposal:  Prior approval for proposed 5G 20m telecoms installation: H3G street pole and additional
equipment cabinets.
Application No.: 68821 App. Type: TEL 12/10/2022 Prior Approval Required and Refused
L - Land at junction of Heywood Street & Benson Street, Bury, BL9 7EB
ocation:
Proposal:  Prior approval for proposed 5G 17m telecoms installation: H3G street pole and additional
equipment cabinets.
Application No.: 68824 App. Type: FUL 24/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. Woodgate Hill Water Treatment Work, Sixth Avenue, Bury, BL9 7RP
Location:
Proposal: Construction of Chemical Dosing Building including associated hard standing and Security

Fencing

Ward: Bury East - Moorside

Application No.: 68516 App- Type: ADV 03/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. Link House, 35 Walmersley Road, Bury, BL9 5AE
Location:
Proposal: Various illuminated / non-illuminated building and car park signage including a pair of canopy

fascia signs to the entrance canopy

Page 99
Page 1 of 11 31/10/2022



Application No.: 68519 App. Type: FUL 27/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
90 Ferngrove, Bury, BL9 6JX

Location:
Proposal:  Two storey extension at side/rear extension and loft conversion with rear dormer
Application No.: 68609 App. Type: FUL 05/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
- Hoyle Nursery School, Chesham Fold Road, Bury, BL9 6HR
Location:
Proposal:  Erection of temporary external classroom and play area with 2m high boundary fencing.
Application No.: 68635 App. Type: FUL 06/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 19A Chesham Road, Bury, BL9 6LY
Location:
Proposal: Two storey side extension; Single storey front extension
Application No.: 68777 App- Type: FUL 03/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. St Pauls C of E Primary School, Porritt Street, Bury, BL9 6L]
Location:
Proposal:  Single storey extension to Porritt Street elevation to form secure entrance area/office
Application No.: 68818 App. Type: TEL 17/10/2022 Prior Approval Required and Refused
- Land opposite Brookshaw Centre, Brook Street, Bury, BL9 6EB
Location:
Proposal:  Prior approval for proposed 5G 15m telecoms installation: H3G street pole and additional

equipment cabinets.

Ward: Bury East - Redvales

Application No.: 68590 App- Type: FUL 05/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 37 Rhiwlas Drive, Bury, BL9 9DE

Location:

Proposal: First floor rear extension

Application No.: 68616 App. Type: FUL 11/10/2022 Approve with Conditions

Location: 1 Brocklehurst Avenue, Bury, BL9 9AQ

Proposal: Two storey front extension; First floor bay window at front; Juliet balcony to the front; Two
storey side extension with gable roof; Ridge height to be increased by 200mm; Dormer
extension at rear; Two storey rear extension.

Application No.: 68617 App. Type: FUL 11/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 3 Brocklehurst Avenue, Bury, BL9 9AQ

Location:

Proposal: Two storey front extension; First floor bay window at front; Juliey balcony to the front; Two
storey side extension with gable roof; Ridge height to be raised by 200mm; Dormer extension
at rear: Two storey rear extension.

Application No.: 68721 App. Type: FUL 21/10/2022 Approve with Conditions

. 5 Richmond Street, Bury, BL9 9BS
Location:
Proposal: Single storey front extension; Single storey/two storey rear extension; Widening of existing

vehicular access

Page 100
Page 2 of 11 31/10/2022



Application No.: 68726 App. Type: FUL 13/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
411 Manchester Road, Bury, BL9 9RY

Location:
Proposal: Two storey extension at side/rear: Single storey extension at rear; Front balcony; Rear
dormer; External alterations; Raised patio; Detached outbuilding

Application No.: 68769 App. Type: FUL 25/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 33 Derwent Drive, Bury, BL9 9LS

Location:

Proposal: Two/single storey side extension

Application No.: 68770 App.- Type: FUL 27/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 22 Orchid Drive, Bury, BL9 9EL

Location:

Proposal:  Single storey side extension

Application No.: 68833 App. Type: TEL 17/10/2022 Prior Approval Required and Refused
- Land at junction of Burns Avenue & Tennyson Avenue, Bury, BL9 9RF

Location:

Proposal:  Prior approval for proposed 5G telecoms installation: H3G 17m street pole and additional

equipment cabinets.

Application No.: 68846 App. Type: GPDE 13/10/2022 Prior Approval Not Required - Extension
. 224 Market Street, Bury, BL9 9AB

Location:

Proposal:  Prior approval for proposed single storey rear extension

Ward: Bury West - Elton

Application No.: 68402 App- Type: ADV 25/10/2022 Approve with Conditions

Location: 10 Tottington Road, Bury, BL8 1LH

Proposal: Installation of wall-mounted illuminated 48-sheet D-Poster (digital) display - Illuminated
external 3m x 6m, Frequency of images to be no greater than once every ten seconds

Application No.: 68641 App. Type: FUL 24/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 103 Holme Avenue, Bury, BL8 1HW
Location:
Proposal: Two storey extension at side; Single storey extension at side/rear; Loft conversion with rear
dormer; Create additional parking to front driveway; Front canopy
Application No.: 68722 App. Type: LDCP 03/10/2022 Lawful Development
. 18 Leigh Lane, Bury, BL8 2RH
Location:
Proposal: Lawful development certificate for proposed single storey rear extension
Application No.: 68734 App. Type: FUL 11/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 19 Bowes Close, Bury, BL8 1UA
Location:
Proposal:  Single storey side and rear extension
Application No.: 68759 App. Type: FUL 27/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 528 Brandlesholme Road, Bury, BL8 1JH
Location:
Proposal: Two storey side extension; Single storey rear extension; Raised rear terrace and New front

gate

Page 101
Page 3 of 11 31/10/2022



Application No.: 68810 App. Type: LDCP 19/10/2022 Lawful Development
68 Valley View, Bury, BL8 1WN

Location:
Proposal: Lawful development certificate for proposed erection of a single storey rear extension
Application No.: 68847 App. Type: FUL 19/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 2 Lindow Close, Bury, BL8 1JR
Location:
Proposal:  Two storey front extension and Single storey rear extension

Ward: Bury West - West

Application No.: 68521 App- Type: FUL 14/10/2022 Refused
. 16 Turton Close, Bury, BL8 2EE

Location:

Proposal: Two storey extension at side and two/single storey extension at rear with juliette balconies at
side/rear and alterations to existing roof; External alterations to include changes to
windows/doors and render to external elevations

Application No.: 68625 App. Type: FUL 12/10/2022 Approve with Conditions

. 514 Bolton Road, Bury, BL8 2DU

Location:

Proposal: Two storey side extension; Single storey rear extension; Erection of fence above existing wall
and gate

Application No.: 68710 App. Type: FUL 14/10/2022 Approve with Conditions

. 18 Kingston Close, Bury, BL8 2EN

Location:

Proposal:  Front bay window extension

Application No.: 68718 App- Type: FUL 19/10/2022 Approve with Conditions

- 28 Gisburn Drive, Bury, BL8 3DH

Location:

Proposal:  Single storey rear extension

Application No.: 68765 App. Type: FUL 24/10/2022 Approve with Conditions

. 3 Wadebridge Drive, Bury, BL8 2NN
Location:
Proposal: Replace existing conservatory with single storey rear extension linked to conversion of garage

Ward: North Manor

Application No.: 68638 App.- Type: FUL 27/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 14 Hawthorn Avenue, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9UZ
Location:
Proposal: Single storey infill extension at front/side; Single storey extension at rear and Single storey
extension to garage at rear to connect to dwelling
Application No.: 68658 App. Type: FUL 14/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 32 Brandlesholme Road, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4DR
Location:
Proposal: First floor rear extension

Page 102
Page 4 of 11 31/10/2022



Application No.: 68664 App. Type: FUL 05/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
13 Brookfield Road, Bury, BL9 5LA

Location:

Proposal:  Single storey rear extension

Application No.: 68745 App. Type: FUL 27/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 1 Wood Road Lane, Summerseat, Bury, BL9 5QA

Location:

Proposal: Two storey side extension and extended raised decking at rear

Application No.: 68791 App. Type: LDCP 19/10/2022 Lawful Development
. 17 Haworth Avenue, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9UX

Location:

Proposal: Lawful development certificate for proposed single storey pitched roof rear extension. Demolish

existing detached garage and remove existing carport.

Application No.: 68813 App. Type: TEL 13/10/2022 Prior Approval Required and Refused
- Grass verge at Coleridge Road, Greenmount, Bury, BL8 4EW

Location:

Proposal:  Prior approval for proposed 5G 16m telecoms installation: H3G street pole and additional

equipment cabinets.

Ward: Prestwich - Holyrood

Application No.: 68613 App. Type: FUL 20/10/2022 Approve with Conditions

. 2A Nursery Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 3EN

Location:

Proposal: First floor side extension with balcony; Front porch extension with balcony, External works
including new vehicular crossing

Application No.: 68634 App. Type: FUL 17/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 283 Heywood Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 2RA
Location:
Proposal:  Single storey rear extension
Application No.: 68808 App. Type: FUL 14/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 11 Chatsworth Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1LZ
Location:
Proposal:  Two storey side extension, single storey extension at side/rear and new front porch
Application No.: 68820 App. Type: TEL 14/10/2022 Prior Approval Required and Refused
. Land at junction of Hastings Road & Henry Street, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1LY
Location:
Proposal:  Prior approval for proposed 5G 16m telecoms installation: H3G street pole and additional

equipment cabinets.

Ward: Prestwich - Sedgley

Application No.: 66674 App. Type: FUL 05/10/2022 Refused

. Former nursery building and land to rear of Earl Street, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1GQ
Location:

Proposal: Change of use and part demolition of former nursery building to form 3 no.dwellings;
Demolition of existing garage units and construction of 12.no dwellings with associated
external works (15 units in total)

Page 103
Page 5 of 11 31/10/2022



Application No.: 68589 App. Type: FUL 10/10/2022 Refused
60 Meade Hill Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0DJ]

Location:
Proposal: Single/two storey side extension; Two storey rear extension over existing single storey rear
with loft conversion; Associated roof alterations

Application No.: 68636 App. Type: FUL 17/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 15 Craigwell Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OEF

Location:

Proposal: Two storey side/rear extension

Application No.: 68689 App. Type: FUL 10/10/2022 Refused
. 1 Hereford Drive, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0JY

Location:

Proposal: Erection of 1no. dwelling with associated site works including soft landscaping, cycle and refuse

storage

Application No.: 68707 App- Type: FUL 27/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 72 Park Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OFA

Location:

Proposal: Creation of one detached house and two semi detached houses

Application No.: 68746 App. Type: FUL 10/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 32 Lichfield Drive, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OHX

Location:

Proposal: Part Single/ part two storey rear extension

Application No.: 68749 App. Type: FUL 17/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. St Marys Park, St Marys Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1GG

Location:

Proposal: Erection of a single storey detached building to provide an equipment store

Application No.: 68754 App. Type: FUL 12/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 129 Albert Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 OHF

Location:

Proposal: Two storey extensions at side and rear

Application No.: 68781 App.- Type: FUL 27/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 120 Park Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0DU

Location:

Proposal:  Single storey rear extension

Ward: Prestwich - St Mary's

Application No.: 68565 App. Type: FUL 05/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 142 Lowther Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9QP

Location:

Proposal: Two storey side extension

Application No.: 68706 App. Type: FUL 27/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 3 Butt Hill Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9PN

Location:

Proposal:  Single storey front/side extension

Page 104
Page 6 of 11 31/10/2022



Application No.: 68728 App. Type: ADV 11/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
558 Bury New Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9ND

Location:
Proposal: 2 no. non - illuminated signs
Application No.: 68739 App. Type: FUL 18/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 31 Sandy Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9RD
Location:
Proposal: Single storey extension at rear; First floor extension at side and Conversion of garage into
living space.
Application No.: 68747 App. Type: FUL 24/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 5 Hamilton Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9GG
Location:
Proposal:  Single storey rear extension; Hip to gable roof extension; Dormer extensions at front and roof

extension above garage; Front porch extension

Ward: Radcliffe - East

Application No.: 67413 App. Type: FUL 03/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 2 Holcombe Grove, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 1SE

Location:

Proposal:  Erection of a two storey detached dwelling following demolition of two minor outbuildings and
improvements to the existing access

Application No.: 68541 App. Type: FUL 06/10/2022 Approve with Conditions

. Land to west of Bury Road/WarthRoad/Hardys Gate/York Street, Radcliffe, M26 2GL

Location:

Proposal: Construction of an earth embankment to connect an existing low flood defence wall to the
north to high ground to the south - the structure will act to complete a flood defence structure
to the private premises to the north

Application No.: 68573 App. Type: FUL 19/10/2022 Approve with Conditions

. 9 Hardman Close, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 4HY

Location:

Proposal: Single storey rear extension, Dormer at rear

Application No.: 68737 App. Type: FUL 11/10/2022 Approve with Conditions

. 2 Farm Crescent, Radcliffe, M26 4LX

Location:

Proposal: Single storey extension at side

Application No.: 68742 App. Type: LBC 13/10/2022 Approve with Conditions

. Radcliffe War Memorial, Blackburn Street, Radcliffe

Location:

Proposal: Listed building consent to install a handrail on steps at the front of the war memorial (to
provide assistance in gaining access to the memorial from street level)

Application No.: 68812 App. Type: TEL 07/10/2022 Prior Approval Required and Refused

L I Bury Street Works, Bury Street, Radcliffe, M26 2GB

ocation:

Proposal:  Prior approval for proposed 5G 18m telecoms installation: H3G street pole and additional
equipment cabinets.

Application No.: 68830 App. Type: TEL 19/10/2022 Prior Approval Required and Granted

I Land outside Greater Manchester Waste Disposal, Cemetery Road, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26

Location: 4EU

Proposal:  Prior approval for proposed 5G telecoms installation: H3G 20m street pole and additional

equipment cabinets.

Page 105
Page 7 of 11 31/10/2022



Application No.: 68858 App. Type: GPDE 17/10/2022 Prior Approval Not Required - Extension

. 11 Halter Close, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 4BH
Location:

Proposal:  Prior approval for proposed single storey rear extension

Ward: Radcliffe - North and Ainsworth

Application No.: 68697 App- Type: FUL 07/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 6 Harley Avenue, Ainsworth, Radcliffe, Bolton, BL2 5RN
Location:
Proposal: Provision of new ramped access at front and reposition of main entrance door to front porch
Application No.: 68779 App- Type: FUL 27/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 14 Browns Road, Radcliffe, Bolton, BL2 6RQ
Location:
Proposal:  Single storey front/side extension

Ward: Radcliffe - West

Application No.: 68423 App. Type: FUL 03/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. Land between 32 and 36 Albion Street, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 1BH

Location:

Proposal:  Proposed two storey building with retail E(a) to ground floor and storage space above E(c)

Application No.: 68753 App. Type: PIAPA 06/10/2022 Prior Approval Required and Granted
. 129-131 Blackburn Street, Radcliffe, Bury, M26 3WQ

Location:

Proposal:  Prior approval for proposed change of use from commercial/retail (Class E) to 3 no. flats (Class

C3) to part ground floor/first floor (ground floor shop at front to be retained)

Application No.: 68794 App. Type: FUL 11/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 47 Harper Fold Road, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3RU

Location:

Proposal: Two storey side/rear extension

Application No.: 68829 App. Type: TEL 12/10/2022 Prior Approval Required and Refused
. Land on Byron Avenue, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3GU

Location:

Proposal:  Prior approval for proposed 5G telecoms installation: H3G 18m street pole and additional

equipment cabinets.
Application No.: 68947 App. Type: CON 21/10/2022 Raise No Objection
Location: Land to rear of Shoreshide Stables Prestolee Road, Stoneclough, Radcliffe, M26 1H]

Proposal:  Article 18 consultation from Bolton Council (ref. 13256/22) for Proposed erection of a 7MW
battery energy storage system and associated cabling

Ward: Ramsbottom + Tottington - Tottington

Application No.: 68602 App. Type: FUL 25/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 21 Walshaw Walk, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3]S

Location:

Proposal:  Single storey rear/side extension

Page 106
Page 8 of 11 31/10/2022



Application No.: 68688 App. Type: FUL 27/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
18 Sandybrook Close, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3LB

Location:

Proposal: Two storey side extension; Single storey extension at rear; Widening of existing driveway

Application No.: 68817 App. Type: TEL 06/10/2022 Prior Approval Required and Refused
- Land near junction of Sycamore Road & Bury Road, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3EG

Location:

Proposal:  Prior approval for proposed 5G 16m telecoms installation: H3G street pole and additional

equipment cabinets.

Ward: Ramsbottom and Tottington - Ramsbottom

Application No.: 68154 App- Type: FUL 24/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. Tower View, Lumb Carr Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL8 4NN
Location:
Proposal: Removal of summer house and hard landscaping. Construction of a home office / garden room
and patio.
Application No.: 68618 App- Type: FUL 28/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. Unit 1-2 Halter Inn Works, 11 Redisher Croft, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9SA
Location:
Proposal: Siting of 2no. storage containers
Application No.: 68624 App. Type: FUL 17/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 41 Garnett Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9JN
Location:
Proposal: Single storey rear extension; Loft conversion with front and rear dormers
Application No.: 68761 App. Type: FUL 03/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 6 Lancaster Avenue, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9QA
Location:
Proposal: Two storey rear extension; Loft conversion with 2no. dormer windows on side/rear; Pitched
roof to existing front door and bay window.
Application No.: 68786 App. Type: FUL 07/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 53 Ribble Drive, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 8WF
Location:
Proposal:  Two storey/single storey side extension; Single storey rear extension
Application No.: 68788 App.- Type: LDCP 21/10/2022 Lawful Development
. 30 Marlborough Close, Ramsbottom, Bury, BLO 9YU
Location:
Proposal: Lawful development certificate for proposed single storey rear extension with a porch at front

Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Besses

Application No.: 68774 App. Type: FUL 27/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 24 Marston Close, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 8]S
Location:
Proposal: Two storey side extension; Single storey rear extension
Page 107

Page 9 of 11 31/10/2022



Application No.: 68838 App. Type: GPDE 17/10/2022 Prior Approval Not Required - Extension

2 Goyt Walk, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 8RL

Location:
Proposal:  Prior approval for proposed single storey rear extension
Application No.: 68867 App. Type: LDCP 27/10/2022 Lawful Development
. 3 Parr Fold, Bury, BLS 8IB
Location:
Proposal:  Lawful development certificate for proposed single storey rear extension to house

Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Pilkington Park

Application No.: 68307 App. Type: FUL 03/10/2022 Refused
. 231 Bury New Road, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 8QP
Location:
Proposal: Lean-to retractable canopy structure over existing patio with full-height glazing to south & east
elevations and timber wall to west elevation
Application No.: 68627 App- Type: FUL 14/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 1 Park Hill Drive, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7PD
Location:
Proposal: Two storey extension at front; First floor extension at front/side and alterations to front
elevation; Widening of existing driveway
Application No.: 68683 App. Type: FUL 24/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 41 Wingate Drive, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7GX
Location:
Proposal:  Single storey rear extension
Application No.: 68694 App. Type: FUL 07/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 32 The Fairways, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7BN
Location:
Proposal: First floor extension at side; Two/single storey extension at rear
Application No.: 68732 App- Type: FUL 27/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
. 32 Ringley Road, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 7LE
Location:
Proposal:  Erection of detached outbuilding in front garden
Application No.: 68854 App. Type: TEL 27/10/2022 Prior Approval Required and Refused
. Pavement outside 177 Bury New Road, Whitefield, M45 6AB
Location:
Proposal:  Prior approval for proposed 5G telecoms installation: H3G 17m street pole and additional

equipment cabinets.

Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Unsworth

Application No.: 68568 App. Type: HAZ 12/10/2022 Approve with Conditions

. Gateway House, Pilsworth Road, Bury, BL9 8RD
Location:

Proposal: Hazardous Substance Consent for Consolidation for all substances and categories of substances
in line with Schedule 1 of the 2015 Regulations

Page 108
Page 10 of 31/10/2022



Application No.: 68703 App. Type: FUL 07/10/2022 Approve with Conditions

. 14 Chadderton Drive, Bury, BL9 8NL
Location:

Proposal: First floor side extension

Application No.: 68727 App. Type: FUL 11/10/2022 Approve with Conditions
- 5 Ajax Drive, Bury, BL9 8EE

Location:

Proposal:  Single storey rear extension

Total Number of Applications Decided: 94

Page 109
Page 11 of 31/10/2022



This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT FOR NOTING

Agenda Itpﬂéf}@][ﬁy

COUNCIL

Agenda
Item 6

DECISION OF:

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE

DATE:

8 November 2022

SUBJECT:

PLANNING APPEALS

REPORT FROM:

HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

CONTACT OFFICER:

DAVID MARNO

TYPE OF DECISION:

COUNCIL

FREEDOM OF This paper is within the public domain
INFORMATION/STATUS:
SUMMARY: Planning Appeals:

- Lodged

- Determined

Enforcement Appeals

- Lodged

- Determined
OPTIONS & The Committee is recommended to the note the report

RECOMMENDED OPTION

and appendices

IMPLICATIONS:

Corporate Aims/Policy

Do the proposals accord with the Policy

Framework: Framework? Yes
Statement by the S151 Officer:
Financial Implications and Risk Executive Director of Resources to advise

Considerations:

regarding risk management

Statement by Executive Director N/A

of Resources:

Equality/Diversity implications: No

Considered by Monitoring Officer: | N/A




Wards Affected: All listed
Scrutiny Interest: N/A
TRACKING/PROCESS DIRECTOR:

Chief Executive/
Strategic Leadership
Team

Executive

Member/Chair

Ward Members

Partners

Scrutiny Committee

Committee

Council

1.0 BACKGROUND

This is a monthly report to the Committee of the Planning Appeals lodged against
decisions of the authority and against Enforcement Notices served and those that
have been subsequently determined by the Planning Inspectorate.

Attached to the report are the Inspectors Decisions and a verbal report will be
presented to the Committee on the implications of the decisions on the Appeals that

were upheld.
2.0 CONCLUSION

That the item be noted.

List of Background Papers:-

Contact Details:-

David Marno, Head of Development Management
Planning Services, Department for Resources and Regulation,

3 Knowsley Place ,Bury
Tel: 0161 253 5291

BLO OEJ]

Email: d.marno@bury.gov.uk

Page 112




Planning Appeals Lodged
between 03/10/2022 and 30/10/2022 DU J;

COUNCDCIL

Application No.: 67658/FUL Appeal lodged: 12/10/2022
Decision level: COM Appeal Type: Written Representations
Recommended Decision: Approve with Conditions

Applicant: Westchurch Homes Limited & Wyresdale Amateur Football Club

Location Land to west of Radcliffe Moor Road/Bury New Road, Radcliffe

Proposal Change of use of the land for use as outdoor sports pitches including engineering
operations to form 4 pitches, the construction of a clubhouse, ancillary storage
structures, creation of access from Radcliffe Moor Road, parking, landscaping,
drainage and associated works.

Application No.: 68817/TEL Appeal lodged: 26/10/2022

Decision level: DEL Appeal Type: Written Representations

Recommended Decision: Prior Approval Required

Applicant: Ck Hutchison Networks (UK) Limited
Location Land near junction of Sycamore Road & Bury Road, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3EG

Proposal Prior approval for proposed 5G 16m telecoms installation: H3G street pole and
additional equipment cabinets.

Application No.: 68819/TEL Appeal lodged: 26/10/2022
Decision level: DEL Appeal Type: Written Representations
Recommended Decision: Prior Approval Required

Applicant: Ck Hutchison Networks (UK) Limited

Location Corner of Jubilee Way & Tenters Street, Bury, BL9 OAL

Proposal Prior approval for proposed 5G 20m telecoms installation: H3G street pole and
additional equipment cabinets.

Application No.: 68821/TEL Appeal lodged: 26/10/2022

Decision level: DEL Appeal Type: Written Representations
Recommended Decision: Prior Approval Required

Applicant: Ck Hutchison Networks (UK) Limited

Location Land at junction of Heywood Street & Benson Street, Bury, BL9 7EB

Proposal Prior approval for proposed 5G 17m telecoms installation: H3G street pole and
additional equipment cabinets.

"Total Number of Appeals Lodged: 4

Page 113



Planning Appeals Decided
between 03/10/2022 and 30/10/2022 @ﬂj

COUNCIL

Application No.: 67665/FUL Appeal Decision: Dismissed
Decision level: DEL Date: 10/10/2022

Applicant: Mr zZaffer Hussein
Location: 3 Bridgefield Drive, Bury, BL9 7PE

Proposal: A: Single storey rear/side extension
B: First floor front extension

Application No.: 68327/FUL Appeal: No further action
Decision level: DEL Date: 05/10/2022
Recommended Decision: Split Decision Appeal submitted too late

Applicant: Mr Joseph
Location: 15 Orange Hill Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 1LR

Proposal: A: Front Porch and amendments to front bay window
B: Rear dormer extensions

Page 114



The Planning Inspectorate

i“ v
AN

Appeal Decision
Site visit made on 14 September 2022
by J Downs BA(Hons) MRTPI

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State
Decision date: 10 October 2022

Appeal Ref: APP/T4210/W/22/3292503

3 Bridgefield Drive, Bury BL9 7PE

e The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

e The appeal is made by Mr Zaffar Hussein against the decision of Bury Metropolitan
Borough Council.

e The application Ref 67665, dated 4 October 2021, was refused by notice dated
11 January 2022.

e The development proposed is First floor front extension single storey rear/side
extension.

Decision

1. The appeal is dismissed insofar as it relates to the first floor front extension.
The appeal is allowed insofar as it relates to the single storey rear/side
extension at 3 Bridgefield Drive, Bury BL9 7PE in accordance with the terms of
the application, Ref 67665, dated 4 October 2021 and subject to the following
conditions:

1) The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than 3 years
from the date of this decision.

2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance
with the following approved plans: 20/543/01; un-numbered proposed
site plan; 21/663/02 and 21/663/03 except in respect of all aspects of
20/543/01 other than the location plan; and in respect of the first floor
extension shown on un-numbered proposed site plan.

3) The external surfaces of the development hereby permitted shall be
constructed in materials to match the existing dwelling.

Preliminary Matters

2. The Council has attempted to issue a split decision in this case, partly allowing
and partly dismissing the proposal. Although that power is given to the
Secretary of State in appeals under section 79 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 (as amended), there is no general power for Local Planning
Authorities to do so. As such, the whole of the proposal is before me and the
appeal will proceed on that basis.

Main Issues
3. The main issues are the effect on:
e the character and appearance of the surrounding area; and

e the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers.

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 115



Appeal Decision APP/T4210/W/22/3292503

Reasons

Character and appearance

4.

10.

The appeal property is a large detached dwelling set in a spacious plot. The
surrounding area is characterised by development of this type. There is no
consistent appearance to the properties, however they are linked by the use of
similar materials and design features, giving the area an attractive cohesive
appearance.

While there is not a defined pattern to development in the area, the dwellings
are generally set back from the highway. In that respect, the existing garage is
prominent in the street scene as it projects clearly forward of the main
dwelling, perpendicular to it and with a significant massing as a result of the
height of the roof.

This prominence would be substantially increased by the appeal proposal,
which would add a first floor and gable end. The roof would be particularly
prominent as it would have a ridge height the same as that of the main
dwelling and would be a long structure as it connected to the existing ridge
line. This increased mass, projecting forward of the dwelling would be unduly
prominent and incongruous in the street scene. This is contrary to the advice in
the Alterations and Extensions to Residential Properties Supplementary
Planning Document adopted 2004 and updated 2010 (SPD) which advises front
extensions should not project excessively from the original front wall and
should reflect the proportions of the original dwelling and more generally
requires extensions to reflect the massing of the original dwelling.

It is acknowledged that the extension, in and of itself, is well designed in terms
of how it relates to the design features of the host property. However this
would not overcome the harm that would arise from its overall scale and
prominence in the street scene.

The rear/side extension would be single storey, with a flat roof sitting at eaves
height to the existing projection. While it would be visible in glimpses from the
side, it would be viewed in the context of the existing built form of the appeal
property and its neighbour. It would be largely screened when facing the
property by the high gates which sit to the side of the property. It therefore
would not be prominent in the street scene, subject to materials which could be
controlled by condition.

In relation to this main issue, the rear/side extension would be of an
acceptable size and height and have an acceptable effect on the character of
the surrounding area in accordance with Bury Unitary Development Plan
adopted August 1997 (UDP) Saved Policy H2/3.

However the first floor front extension would not be of an appropriate size and
height and would not have an acceptable effect on the character of the
surrounding area. This element of the appeal scheme would, therefore, not
comply with UDP Saved Policy H2/3 which seeks a high standard of design for
residential extensions and alterations, and the guidance contained within the
SPD.

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 1162



Appeal Decision APP/T4210/W/22/3292503

Living conditions

11.

12.

13.

Both extensions would be adjacent to 5 Bridgefield Drive, which sits at a
slightly higher level than the appeal site. No 5 has a garage at ground floor and
a large glazed window to the first floor closest to the appeal site. Given the
orientation of the dwellings, the extent of the windows and the gap between
the properties, there would not be a material loss of light. The front garden
area of No 5 is otherwise used for parking, so there would not be an adverse
effect on the living conditions of the occupants arising from the front extension.

The rear/side extension, given its small scale, flat roof, position adjacent to the
blank side elevation of No 5 and the difference in levels between the sites,
would have no effect on the living conditions of No 5.

In relation to this main issue, the proposed extensions would have an
acceptable effect on the amenity of adjacent properties in accordance with UDP
Saved Policy H2/3 which requires extensions and alterations to be sympathetic
to the surrounding area.

Other Matters

14.

15.

16.

17.

The appellant has referred to a decision taken in 2011 and suggests that there
is a lack of consistency between the two decisions. I do not have details of that
proposal before me, including the reason for refusal. However, despite the UDP
and SPD remaining the same, this appeal is to be judged on its own merits,
particularly after such a considerable passage of time. While both the UDP and
SPD pre-date the National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) in any
of its iterations, the current Framework is clear in its requirement for
development to be of a high quality, and the principles set out in the SPD as
they relate to this appeal therefore remain valid.

The appellant has made reference to UDP Saved Policy EN1/2 but stated that it
was a non-specific policy. The Council have not referred to that policy in either
their officer report or decision notice. I have not been provided with a copy of
that policy. However as neither party has put forward any arguments with
regard to this policy, I have not considered it further.

Reference has been made by both parties to the need for a bat survey. As I
have found that the aspects of the development that would affect the roof
would not be acceptable, I have not considered this issue further.

The two parts of the development proposed are clearly severable. I have
identified no adverse effects arising from the rear/side extension and consider
that it would be appropriate to issue a split decision.

Conditions

18.

I have imposed standard conditions with regard to time limit and approved
plans to define the terms of the permission. With the exception of the layout
plans, the two aspects of the development are shown on different plans and
those plans which show the floor plan and elevations of the front extension do
not form part of the approved plans. In the interests of good design, it is
necessary to impose a condition relating to external materials.

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 1173



Appeal Decision APP/T4210/W/22/3292503

Conclusion

19. For the reasons given above I conclude that the appeal is allowed insofar as it
relates to the rear/side extension as that is in accordance with the provisions of
the development plan. The appeal is dismissed insofar as it relates to the first
floor front extension as it would be contrary to the development plan and there
are no material considerations of sufficient weight to lead me to conclude
otherwise.

J Downs
INSPECTOR

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate Page 1184



Details of Enforcement Appeal Decisons SBWW

between 03/10/2022 and 30/10/2022 coumne
Location: 18 Meade Hill Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0DJ] Case Ref:
0261 /21
Issue: Change of use of property to short term let accommodation

Appeal Decision: Dismissed 07/10/2022

Page 119
Date of Report - 31/10/2022 Page 1 of 1



' The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision
Site visit made on 27 September 2022

by Anthony J Wharton BArch RIBA RIAS MRTPI

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Decision date: 7 October 2022

Appeal Ref: APP/T4210/C/22/3293202
18 Meade Hill Road, Prestwich, Manchester M25 0DJ]

e The appeal is made under section 174 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as
amended by the Planning and Compensation Act 1991.

e The appeal is made by Austin Mbawa against an enforcement notice issued by
Bury Metropolitan Borough Council.

e The enforcement notice was issued on 13 January 2022.

e The breach of planning control as alleged in the notice is as follows:
Change of use of the dwelling within Use Class C3 to short term lets (Sui Generis).

e The requirements of the notice are as follows:
Cease the use of the property on the site as short term let accommodation.

e The period for compliance with the requirements is 30 days.

e The appeal is proceeding on ground (a) only, as set out in section 174(2) of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended.

Decision
1. The appeal is dismissed. See formal decision below.
Background information

2. The appeal building is a two storey semi-detached dwelling on the southern side
of the road, in this predominantly residential part of Prestwich. There is a driveway
to the front of sufficient size to park one vehicle, a detached garage and a rear
garden. The house is bounded to the rear by the Metrolink line and is close to one of
the stations providing regular tram services into Manchester Piccadilly and beyond.

3. In July 2021 the Council received a complaint that a change of use had occurred
and that the dwellinghouse was being used as short term let holiday accommodation.
Following a Land Registry check the appellant (the leaseholder) and the owner of the
house were contacted and, after further complaints, a Planning Contravention Notice
(PCN) was served on the appellant on 5 October 2021. The appellant was given an
extension of time for completion of the PCN which was e-mailed to the Council on 17
December 2021. However, a paper copy was not returned to the Council.

4. Following a request from the Council, the complainants kept a log to record
activities at the property so that the nature of the use could be assessed. This is set
out in Appendix A to the Council’s appeal statement. The Council was not satisfied
with the answers in the PCN and, having liaised further with the complainants and
having checked the website being used to market the property (named as ‘Heat-On
House’), the Council considered it expedient to serve the enforcement notice on both
the appellant and the owner of the house.

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

1

Page 120



Appeal Decision APP/T4210/C/22/3293202

5. The property is still being used solely as short-term let accommodation. It has 4
double bedrooms, a kitchen with a dishwasher and a microwave, a flat-screen TV, a
seating area and 1 bathroom fitted with a shower. Off-road parking space for one car
is provided to the front. It is rented out via online travel agencies, which describe
the property as a holiday home being able to accommodate a maximum of 13 guests
(9 adults and 4 children).

The appeal on ground (a)

6. In effect, the appeal on ground (a) seeks retrospective planning permission for a
change of use of the land from dwelling house within Use Class C3 of The Town and
Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended), to short term let
accommodation (Sui Generis use).

Main issue

7. The main issue is the effect of the short term let accommodation on the living
conditions of nearby residents by reason of noise and disturbance and anti-social
behaviour. There is no issue regarding the principle of the use (see below) since the
Borough aims to extend the range of visitor accommodation. However, this is
subject to the effect of any proposal with regard to such matters as the impacts on
the character of a locality, parking and residential amenities.

Relevant Policy

8. The development plan is the Bury Unitary Development Plan BUDP and the most
relevant policies are EC4/1 (Small Businesses); EC6/1 (New Business, Industrial and
Commercial Development); EN7/2 (Noise Pollution); H3/1 (Assessing non-conforming
uses) and RT4/3 (Visitor Accommodation). The National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF) is a major material planning consideration. In particular it states that the
planning system, should support strong, vibrant and healthy communities and that
decisions should play an active role in guiding development towards sustainable
solutions by taking local circumstances into account, to reflect the character, needs
and opportunities of each area.

9. The Council also refers to Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 which
imposes a duty on it to exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely
effect of the exercise of those functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably
can to prevent crime and disorder in its area (including anti-social and other
behaviour adversely affecting the environment).

The gist of the case for the appellant.

10. The change of use is considered to comply with Policies EC4/1, H2/5, H3/1,
EN7/2 and RT4/3 of the BUDP. It is stressed that the house provides high quality
short term let accommodation for visitors to the Borough and that it also provides
employment opportunities for local people. It is acknowledged that, on occasions, the
change of use of the property could lead to an increase in the number of persons
visiting the property compared to its use as a single dwelling (Use Class C3).
However, it is indicated that it previously housed a large family and is located on a
busy local residential road directly to the north of the Metrolink line.

11. Thechange in use is not considered to result in any materially different or
unacceptable levels of additional noise, above what may be expected from a single
family occupying the house. An analysis of the booking data recorded over the past
seven months is considered to show that this is the case. It is also stressed that the

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 2

Page 121




Appeal Decision APP/T4210/C/22/3293202

principle of the conversion of an existing building to provide visitor accommodation in
the Borough is supported by Local Policy and that the principle of such a change is
acceptable. It is also indicated that the LPA does not have any specific policy limiting
the loss of residential dwelling houses to other uses.

12. It is indicated that, although available for occupation seven days a week, it
remains unoccupied for the majority of the time. It is also indicated that booking
records demonstrate that the property is most likely occupied during the weekend,
with peak bookings taken on Friday and Saturday evenings.

13. References are made to the NPPF including the emphasis that the government
places on ensuring that the planning system should help create conditions in which
businesses can invest, expand and adapt the need to support economic growth and
productivity, the need promotion of healthy communities; the need promotion of sustainable
transport; and the need to achieve well-designed places. The above BUDP policies are also
referred to and in particular RT4/3 (Visitor Accommodation) which, amongst other things
states that 'extensions to existing accommodation and conversion of existing
buildings to provide further bedspaces will be viewed favourably, where other
development criteria are met.”’

14. Turning to the Council’s contention that the short term let accommodation is
deemed to conflict with the NPPF and the above policies of the BUDP, it is contended
that if the property reverted to its lawful use as a single family sized residential dwelling
it would be occupied on a daily basis. In contrast booking records of ‘Heat-On House’
which have been maintained by the appellant since its launchin July 2021
demonstrate that its combined average vacancy from July 2021 to January 2022
(inclusive) amounts to only 49%. Thus it is essentially vacant for half of the time.

15. During the same period, the mean group size extended to 5.16 people which is
broadly consistent with the number of inhabitants that could reasonably be expected
to reside in the property if it was occupied as a family sized dwelling.

16. It is indicated that this pattern of occupancy is unlikely to change in the future
given that the majority of visitors to the property are seeking accommodation to
provide a base from which to explore the cultural attractions of Greater Manchester
during weekends, thus supporting the local economy. The Council’s unsubstantiated
assertion that the property is now subject to increased comings and goings when
compared to its lawful residential use, is not accepted.

17. Neither is it accepted that the property creates disturbance as a result of
increased vehicle movements by way of visitors to the property as well as from
cleaning staff. It is contended that the bookings records and pattern of occupancy
table indicate that there is likely to be a reduction in the number of vehicle
movements that could reasonably be associated with the use of the property as a
family sized dwelling. The occupancy data also shows that cleaners only need to visit
the site on an average of two to three times per week.

18. Irrespective of the reduced number of vehicle movements associated with the
site, it is argued that there will be no discernible noise impact in the context of the
hundreds of vehicle movements which take place withinthe immediate streetscene on
a weekly basis and that the appellant has taken all reasonable steps to ensure that
visitors to’ Heat-On House’ do not cause any unacceptable noise or disturbance to
occupiers of neighbouring properties on Meade Hill Road.

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 3

Page 122




Appeal Decision APP/T4210/C/22/3293202

19. Reference is made to the submitted ‘House Rules’ document and it is contended
that this providesa clear framework by which all guests need to adhere to (or risk
financial penalty). This is considered to mitigate the potential for adverse noise or
anti-social behaviour and it is indicated that the rules, which are reinforced by CCTV
cameras, are enforced by the appellant who essentially acts as manager for the
property. In addition, bookings can only be made by those over the agree of 21.

20. With regard to noise monitoring it is confirmed that the house is fitted with noise
monitoring software know as 'Minut’ which records any sounds within and around the
property in decibels and live recordings which are linked in real time to the
appellant’s mobile phone by way of graphs. An example is submitted with the
appellant’s appeal statement.

21. In the unlikely event of there being any noise over and above the set level of
70db for 10 minutes, messages and an alarm are automatically sent to the appellant
to enable action to be taken. This is an effective tool to prevent potential noise
disturbance from guests such as loud music or parties and reflects the considered
approach taken by the appellant to ensure that the use of the property as short term
let accommodation does not result in any unacceptable impacts upon the amenity of
occupiers of neighbouring properties.

22. It is stressed that further evidence of the appellant’s careful approach to the
management of the property is demonstrated by the overwhelmingly positive reviews
which have been uploaded to the one of the booking websites. This indicates that from
a total of 26 reviews, an average score of 8.5 out of 10 (classified by the website as
‘Very Good’) has been registered. Several of the commentsrefer to the appellant as
being a proactive and helpful host and the ‘House Rules’ being enforced as
appropriate.

23. It is indicated that the appellant’s agent is experienced in dealing with issues
relating to noise and disturbance within planning applications and appeals and that
potential for adverse impacts upon neighbouring amenity usually arises from a
change of use of a property to a fundamentally different use which would be
potentially incompatible within an established residential area (such as a hot food
takeaway).

24. This is on the basis of: fundamentally different patterns of comings and goings
when compared to the surrounding area (ie at different times of the day or late into
the evening where the potential for adverse noise impacts is exacerbated); a
significant increase in the number of comings or goings to the property ;potential for
people to congregate near to the property that would result in the potential for
adverse noise impacts and increased car/vehicle/delivery movements.

25. It is argued that none of the above issues apply to the scheme and therefore that
the development accords with Policies EN7/2, RT4/3 and H2/5 ofthe Bury Unitary
Development Plan and should be considered acceptable.

The gist of the case for the Council

26. The Council contends that the retention of the short-term let accommodation use
would continue to be seriously detrimental to the residential amenities of the nearby
residents, by reason of the noise, anti-social behaviour and disturbance. It is
stressed, therefore that the use conflicts with the NPPF and Policies EC4/1 (Small
Businesses); EC6/1 (New Business, Industrial and Commercial Development); EN7/2
(Noise Pollution) and H3/1 (Assessing Non-conforming Uses). Given the provisions of

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 4

Page 123




Appeal Decision APP/T4210/C/22/3293202

Policy RT4/3, the Council accepts that the principle of development is acceptable in
general terms But that clearly the impacts on amenity need to be considered.

27. The Council stresses that, in normal circumstances, the use of a Class C3
dwelling would be expected to be occupied by a family (given that it is a three bed
semi-detached dwelling) or group of up to 6 people. However, in this case the
proposed use of the property would allow for occupation by up to 13 individuals (as
advertised) which is more than double the number of occupants one may reasonably
expect to be residing at the property.

28. The figures relating to the booking record are referred to and that the average
vacancy rate of the appeal site amounts to 49% and that the mean group size is 5.16
people. The Council also notes that the house rules require respectful behaviour; that
there is noise monitoring equipment and external CCTV. It is also acknowledged
that, the property might be subject to fewer comings and goings than may be the
case than with a permanently occupied dwelling.

29. However, it is stressed that the impact noted in the reasons for issuing the
Enforcement Notice refers to noise, anti-social behaviour and disturbance. Reference
is again made to the ‘booking record’ which demonstrates that groups of between 7
and 10 people regularly occupy the premises (largely at weekends).

30. The Council refers to the two formal 'Notice of Anti-Social Behaviour Formal
Warnings’issued on 03/12/2021 and 09/02/2022, which were issued in response to
multiple complaints of anti-social behaviour by guests at the property (set out
Appendix B to the Council’s appeal statement). It is indicated that these occurrences
of anti-social behaviour tend to correlate with weekend parties of larger groups,
although not exclusively so.

31. The Council stresses that the reported anti-social behaviour includes ‘loud
swearing and screaming, banging, playing of loud music, verbal abuse and
threatening language (towards neighbours), altercations on the street, sexual liaisons
in the garden, drug and alcohol misuse’. 1t is indicated that the Police have had to be
called to attend various incidents.

32. The Council acknowledges that occupation of the property by a family or group
of up to six people living together does not guarantee that such behaviour would not
occur. However, the Council indicates that it is clear that there has been a high
incidence of anti-social behaviour related to the unsupervised occupation of the
property by groups and parties of adults using the property on short term lets.

33. Itis argued that the transient nature and frequency of the short term occupiers
tends to mean that they have little connection to the area and hence are less inclined
to respect the surrounding area and its existing residents. It is suggested therefore
that such visitors have fewer concerns or realisation of causing noise and
disturbance. It is accepted that the house rules, noise monitoring and CCTV, can
encourage considerate behaviour.

34. However it is argued that these cannot provide assurances that short term
visitors will not engage in anti-social behaviour. The repeated reports and
complaints are considered to be firm evidence that the attempted controls are
insufficient to prevent some visitors for behaving anti-socially. Although guest
reviews have been submitted it is indicated that these merely provide satisfaction
reports from visitors and do not in themselves provide evidence of careful
management.

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 5

Page 124




Appeal Decision APP/T4210/C/22/3293202

35. Given the unacceptable and harmful impacts demonstrated on neighbouring
amenity of the unauthorised use, the proposal is contrary to the above stated UDP
policies and the NPPF. No planning conditions are considered capable of overcoming
the unacceptable harmful impacts identified.

My assessment

36. I agree with the Council and the appellant that the principle of the proposed
change of use is acceptable and that certain local plan and NPPF policies could
support such a use in this part of the Borough. However, the policies in favour of
such a use need to be considered and balanced against other policies which seek to
safeguard residential amenity and to ensure that the developments proposed are
sustainable in terms of all economic, social and environmental factors.

37. The complaints made in the first instance to the Council are substantial and have
continued since the enforcement notice was issued. Furthermore, the log kept by the
complainants at the Council’s request confirms, in my view, that the activities of
some visitors has caused significant undue noise and disturbance for the residents.
There is also considerable evidence from neighbours and interested persons, some of
whom outline the history of the appellant’s use of the property, from when he first
took over the lease of the property.

38. The courts have held that whether or not a change of use has occurred must
depend on the particular circumstances of each case and as a matter of fact and
degree. The basic test is to compare the lawful use of the land or property with the
use being carried out and to assess whether the use alters the character of usage of
the property to such an extent that a material change has taken place.

39. There is no appeal on ground (c); that a contravention has taken place.
However, on behalf of the appellant it is contended that, with regard to the comings
and goings, noise and disturbance and the general pattern of usage of the property
there is no material difference to its use as a dwellinghouse in Class C3. I disagree with
this contention. In my view the use as a short term holiday let property is fundamentally
and materially different to its use as a family house, or even a small House in Multiple
Occupation (HMO) in Class C4.

40. Whilst accepting that bookings records indicate an occupancy level overall of around
49%, when in use as a holiday let, the evidence indicates that the main comings and
goings are over the weekend periods and that, as well as some visitors arriving by car, so
too do the cleaning staff. On average the records indicate that occupancy levels at the
weekend are between 7 and 10 people. However, there is the potential to accommodate
13 people and the main reason for the issue of the enforcement notice relates to noise,
anti-social behaviour and disturbance.

41. Two formal 'Notice of Anti-Social Behaviour Formal Warnings’ were issued in
response to multiple complaints of the guests’ behaviour at the property and these
occurrences of anti-social behaviour tend to correlate with weekend parties of larger
groups, although, as indicated by the Council, not exclusively so. I acknowledge that
in some communities there are certain families who also behave anti-socially.
However, in my view, the potential for disturbance by up to 13 people (or different
groups of up to that number) regularly congregating inside and outside of the
property for celebrations or parties mainly at weekends, is substantially greater than
any use by a family group.

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 6

Page 125




Appeal Decision APP/T4210/C/22/3293202

42. 1 accept that the appellant has put in place various mitigation measures
including the ‘Minut’ programme and that there is also a set of ‘House Rules’ in place.
However, it is clear from the complaints of neighbours (both before and after the
issuing of the enforcement notice) that these have not been working in relation to all
visitors. The anti-social behaviour has continued and the living conditions of the
people who live close by have been severely disrupted. In my view the ‘House Rules’
cannot possibly be expected to be followed by 100% of visitors, 100% of the times of
occupancy. I consider that it is too optimistic of the appellant to expect, that when
on holiday and/or having some form of celebration, visitors will behave perfectly and
with full consideration for the nearby residents in this part of Prestwich.

43. Whist accepting that not all visitors will, or have behaved, in an anti-social
manner, unfortunately the recorded ‘loud swearing and screaming, banging, playing
of loud music, verbal abuse and threatening language (towards neighbours),
altercations on the street, sexual liaisons in the garden, drug and alcohol misuse’ of
some visitors has caused undue and unacceptable disturbance for neighbouring
residents. The log kept by complainants as well as their individual submissions all
clearly outline the unacceptable activities (some seemingly illegal) of some guests.

44, The need for the police to be involved at various times reinforces my view that
the use of the property as a short term holiday let property has caused major
material planning concerns and that the character of usage as such (no matter how
low the overall occupation) has been significantly different to use as a dwellinghouse
for a normal family.

45. Based on the evidence before me and as a matter of fact and degree, I consider
that there has been an unacceptable change of use from a single dwellinghouse to a
Sui Generis use as a property being let for short term holiday let accommodation. It
follows that I agree with the Council that the use is contrary to the BUDP policies
referred to above, as well as to the basic policies set out in the NPPF.

46. On this latter point I consider that a continued use of the property for short term
lets would be socially and environmentally unacceptable. The NPPF seeks to ensure
that developments are sustainable and create places that are safe, inclusive and
accessible and which promote healthand well-being, with a high standard of amenity
for existing and future users and where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do
not undermine the quality of life or community cohesion and resilience.

47. There is clear evidence that the short term holiday let use of the dwelling has
had severe anti-social consequences. There has also been clear environmental harm
caused due to the levels and frequency of noise and disturbance caused by visitors. I
consider that the use has clearly undermined the quality of life for neighbouring
residents and that there have been clear conflicts caused within this residential
community. I do not consider that the current measures in place to control or
monitor the behaviour of some guests can mitigate against the reported activities.
Nor do I consider that any further mitigation measures could improve the situation
and the harmful effects on the living conditions of neighbours.

48. In summary I do not consider that planning permission ought to be granted for
the continued use of the property as short term let holiday accommodation. It
follows that the appeal must fail on ground (a).

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 7

Page 126




Appeal Decision APP/T4210/C/22/3293202

Other Matters

49. In reaching my conclusions I have taken into account all of the other matters
raised on behalf of the appellant, by the Council and by others. These include the
initial submissions, all of the statements and appendices, all of the complainants and
interested persons’ submissions, the photographic evidence and any final
submissions.

50. However, none of these carries sufficient weight to alter my conclusion that
planning permission should not be granted for this use and nor is any other factor of
such significance so as to change my decision.

Formal Decision

51. The appeal is dismissed and the enforcement notice is upheld. The application
deemed to have been made under section 177(5) is refused.

Anthony J Wharton

Inspector

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 8

Page 127




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on the 11th October 2022
	Minutes

	4 Planning Applications
	Item 01 Final
	Item 02 Final
	Item 03 Final
	Item 04 Final
	Item 05 Final

	5 Delegated Decisions
	6 Planning Appeals

